
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 23 November 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Planning 
Committee  

     
 

 

Thursday, 1 December 2022 at 1.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Council Offices,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor David Bellamy (Chairman) 
Councillor Penny Milnes (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor John Cottier, Councillor Penny Robins, 
Councillor Ian Selby, Councillor Judy Stevens, Councillor Ian Stokes,  
Councillor Paul Wood, Vacancy (Alliance SK) and 2 Vacancies (Conservative) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, 
via the SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

 Planning matters 
 

To consider applications received for the grant of 
planning permission – reports prepared by the Case 

Officer. 

The anticipated order of consideration is as shown on 
the agenda, but this may be subject to change, at the 

discretion of the Chairman of the Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

4.   South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase One Consultation 

Proposal:                    South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase One 
Consultation 

Location:                    North Kesteven District 

Recommendation:     That the committee endorse the draft 
consultation response to Anglian Water and 
delegate authority to the Assistant Director of 
Planning, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
to issue the final response. 

 

(Pages 9 - 33) 

5.   Authority Monitoring Report 
 

The annual publication of the Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR) is a 
statutory requirement for all Local Authorities. The AMR covers the 
period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 and reviews progress in 
preparing development plans and the extent to which South Kesteven 
District Council’s policies have been put into effect. 
 

(Pages 35 - 95) 

6.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



1 
 

Minutes 
 

Planning Committee 
  

Thursday, 3 November 2022, 1.00 pm  
 

Council Chamber - South Kesteven 
House, St. Peter's Hill, Grantham.  
NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

Councillor Penny Milnes (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor John Cottier 
Councillor Robert Reid 
Councillor Ian Selby 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
 

Other Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 

Officers in attendance   

 

Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Emma Whittaker (Assistant Director of Planning) 
Adam Murray (Principal Planning Officer) 
Shemuel Sheikh (Legal Advisor) 
Amy Pryde (Democratic Services Officer)  

 

 
35. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 

 
Councillor Penny Milnes was acting as Chairman, for this meeting only. 

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors David Bellamy, 
Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, Penny Robins and Judy Stevens. 

 
Councillor Robert Reid was substituting for Councillor Rosemary Kaberry-Brown.  

 
Councillor Phil Dilks was filling the vacancy for Alliance SK. 

 
36. Disclosure of interests 

 
No interests were disclosed. 

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
37. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2022 

 
It was clarified that an acting Vice-Chairman was not formally required. 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2022 were proposed, seconded, 
and AGREED as a correct record subject to additional wording being included 
within minute number 30, application S20/1586.  

 
38. Application S22/0978 

 
Proposal:                                  Erection of 9(no) houses and associated vehicular 

access 
 

Location:                                   Former Shirley Croft Hotel Site, Harrowby Road, 
Grantham  

 
Recommendation:                   To authorise the Assistant Director to GRANT 

planning permission, subject to conditions outlined 
in this report. 

 
Noting comments made in the public speaking session by: 

 
District Ward Councillor:            Councillor Charmaine Morgan (statement read out 

by Democratic Services) 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
 

Against:                                      Jim Smith 
                                           Mike Lane 
 

Agent:                                         Matt Hubbard 
 

Together with: 
 

• Provisions within the South Kesteven Local Plan 2011-2036, Lincolnshire 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies DPD, Design Guidelines for Rutland and South 
Kesteven Supplementary Planning Document, the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF).  

• No comments received from Anglian Water. 

• No comments received from Cadent Gas. 

• No comments received from Grantham Civic Society.  

• No comments received from Heritage Lincolnshire. 

• No comments received from Lincolnshire County Council (Education). 

• Comments received from Lincolnshire County Council (Highways & SuDS). 

• No comments received from Lincolnshire County Council (Minerals). 

• No comments received from Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue. 

• No comments received from Lincolnshire Police Crime Prevention Officer. 

4



3 
 

• Comments received from NHS Lincolnshire.  

• No comments received from MOD Safeguarding.  

• Comments received from SKDC Environmental Protection.  

• Comments received from SKDC Arboricultural Advisor. 

• Comments received from SKDC Principal Urban Design Officer. 

• Comments received from Ward Members – Councillors Graham Jeal and 
Charmaine Morgan.  
 

During questions to public speakers, Members commented on: 
 

• Whether there were any existing three-storey properties in the proposed area. 
It was confirmed that properties on the adjacent road were mostly two-storey, 
however, there were a few existing three-storey properties. These existing 
properties were 50 yards away from the proposed site.  

• One public speaker highlighted that he had lived on Croft Drive, for 23 years 
and that some residents had occupied their property for 55 years. He 
expressed his concern of the proposal and the possible impact on all residents 
within the vicinity.  

• It was queried as to whether the agent of the application was proposing to 
rebuild and repair the wall adjacent to Harrowby Road. It was noted that a 
boundary condition had been suggested by the Planning Officer. The agent’s 
intention was to repair the existing walls and boundary details to the external 
sides of the proposed site.  

• Clarification was sought on whether the extant planning permission retained 
all mature trees on the site. The revised planning permission suggested that 
some of the mature trees would be removed and that some trees had already 
been felled as part of the Arboriculturist report. It was confirmed that no trees 
had been removed from the site already that had not been approved as part of 
the extant planning permission. Additional felling was proposed as part of the 
current application.   

• It was further queried as to whether T1 and T3 were mature horse chestnut 
trees and whether they had been felled. The species of the trees were 
confirmed as mature horse chestnut trees and had been removed from the 
site. The proposed planning permission would protect more of the trees on the 
site in terms of situating the development outside the root protection areas. 

• It was confirmed that the felled horse chestnut trees had a disease, the trees 
that were being retained were in a good condition and had no justification to 
be removed, the Arboriculturist had concerns in terms of potential issues of 
overshadowing, litter being dropped etc for those plots within thew area.  

• Concerns were raised around the original application having 8 plots and the 
revised application having 9 plots. Concern was raised on the plots on the 
revised application being too cramped. The applicant expressed that this was 
suitable in regard to light levels, overlooking window positions, scale and 
massing. 

• Further clarification was sought regarding whether the wall on Croft Drive 
would be rendered as part of the proposed application. It was confirmed that 
the intention was to bring the wall back to its original state. The walls along 

5



4 
 

Harrowby Road and Croft Drive would be built along the northern and western 
boundary of the site.  

• The Principal Planning Officer noted that trees (T9 and T10) had partially been 
removed. There was a condition in place for boundary treatments and it was 
expected that this would require the remainder of the trees to be fully 
excavated. 

• Concern was raised over loss of privacy on surrounding properties and 
intrusive design. It was queried as to whether there was expected to be 20 
metres between an existing dwelling and the position of a new dwelling. It was 
confirmed that the adopted standards in place vary on factors relating to 
habitable windows and blank elevation, as well as the scale of the properties. 

• One Member sought clarification from the applicant as to whether the 
proposed development complied with the amenity separation criteria. It was 
confirmed that the proposed application complied with the criteria, however, 
the approved previous scheme for the site did not meet requirements for 
separation distances and light exposure.  

• It was queried as to whether the tree roots would be removed prior to any part 
of the development being occupied and whether hard and soft landscaping 
works would be carried out in accordance with the approved landscaping 
details. The Assistant Director for Planning noted that condition 6 detailed the 
tree protection scheme for retained trees and the tree report outlined methods 
of construction, for example, protection fencing and controlled methods of 
digging.  
  

During questions to officers, Members commented on: 
 

• Clarification was sought on the root protection area of the retained trees and 
the possible impact of the proposed development on the protection of these 
trees. It was confirmed that the proposed dwellings would not be directly 
impacted by the root protection area.  

• One Member raised concern over the Root Protection Area (RPA) for T9 and 
T10 not being shown on the plan.  
 

The Chairman suggested that the Committee follow a structured debate in three 
sections: Overlooking, impact on trees, design and total impact on street scene, 
then any other concerns.  

 
During debate on overlooking, Members commented on: 

 

• That despite concerns and the impact on neighbours, the application met the 
criteria on the grounds of being overlooked. It was confirmed that condition 11 
ensured relevant windows would be obscure glazed in relation to overlooking. 
This would be completed before the development was occupied.  

• Whether properties 4 and 5 were passed on appeal regarding the overlooking 
issue. It was confirmed the two properties were approved on appeal in 2012.  
 

During debate on impact on trees, Members commented on: 
 

6



5 
 

• Concern over the strong objection received by the arboriculturist, which 
advised the proposal was not workable from an arboriculture perspective and 
more trees could be retained. The arboriculturist report further stated that two 
of the plots were too close to trees and residents would feel the trees were 
overbearing to their dwellings and limit their amenity space.  

• That the trees had a positive impact on mental well-being and the role that 
trees played towards climate change and carbon absorption. The 
arboriculturist also highlighted that the horse chestnut tree within this 
application had a high degree of merit as a public visual amenity and was a 
historic green feature in a dense area and the loss would harm the 
appearance of the surrounding street scene.  

• The Assistant Director of Planning confirmed that T4, T5 and T6 were 
proposed to be retained. The Tree Officer had raised concerns in the report 
regarding Post Development Tree Resentment, where after time residents 
may request to have a tree felled. The Tree Officer had commented purely on 
the proposed plans and raised concerns of the proximity of trees to the 
properties and the fact that they were prominent within the gardens, this could 
cause concern for future residents.  

• The Principal Planning Officer clarified that Members were being asked to 
consider a balanced position between above ground constraints and below 
ground constraints with relation to the trees. It was noted that in relation to 
RPA’s, the current application would be better in terms of below ground 
constraints because the hardstanding was situated outside of the RPAs.  

• Concern was raised around the current proposal and the trees being in private 
back gardens.  

• Clarification was sought on tree (T8) due to its location being within close 
proximity of a driveway.  

 
During debate on design and overall impact on street scene, Members commented 
on: 

 

• Concerns over the trees being plotted in the back gardens of the proposed 
dwellings.  

• Whether the application met the criteria for over-development was queried. It 
was confirmed that over-development was a product of why it could be a poor 
layout or design. The components of the application and issues would need to 
be considered to establish which parts that are result in a scheme being 
considered to be over-development. 

• Whether the increase of number of dwellings from 8 to 9 would mean that the 
plot was over-developed on that basis. The Officer’s recommendation outlined 
that the increase of number of dwellings was not an over-development of the 
site.  

• That the layout of the properties on the proposed plan were not practical. 

• A query was raised on parking areas within the proposed site. It was 
confirmed that the Council did not have any adopted standards in terms of the 
local plan in relation to the amount of parking provided, however, Lincolnshire 
County Council followed a development design document, Lincolnshire 

7



6 
 

County Council had not raised any objections on parking concerns for this 
proposed site. 

• Further concerns were raised over the proposed application not complying 
with policy DE1 on a matter of design. It was highlighted that plots 1,2 and 3 
were too close together and may affect future maintenance of the plot and 
were out of character for the area.  

• The Assistant Director of Planning clarified that the closest point of the corner 
of plot 3 and plot 2 was 2.335 metres, meaning a side gate could be installed 
if necessary. The closest point between plot 3 and plot 4 was 2.95 metres. 
The closest point between plot 2 and plot 1 was 4.75 metres.  

• Members felt that the impact from an extra dwelling, trees in rear back 
gardens and the density of the site were concerning.  
 

It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED to authorise the Assistant Director for 
Planning to REFUSE planning permission for the summary of reasons discussed 
with the acting Chairman of Planning Committee at this meeting: 

 
By virtue of the position of proposed Plots 1 – 3 in relation to the existing 
mature trees fronting Harrowby Road, the proposed development would 
appear cramped and contrived to fit into an unsuitable space, and would 
result in a form of development that would be out of character for the 
surrounding area. In addition, the proposed position of these plots in relation 
to the protected trees would result in inadequate, useable private amenity 
space for future occupants of these dwellings, which is likely to result in 
post-development tree resentment and therefore result in pressure to prune / 
remove the trees to the detriment of the public visual amenity.  As such, the 
application proposals would be contrary to Policy DE1 of the adopted South 
Kesteven Local Plan and Section 12 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 

 
39. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 

decides is urgent 
 

There were none. 
 

40. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 15:05.  
 
 

8



 

 

 

Planning Committee 

1 December 2022 

  

   

         
  

 

South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase One Consultation 

Proposal: South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase One Consultation 

Location: North Kesteven District 

Applicant: Anglian Water 

Reason for Referral to 
Committee: 

Consultation on a proposed reservoir bordering South Kesteven 
District 

Key Issues: Consultation deadline: 24th December 2022 
Key issues include: 
 

• Loss of Land and Buildings 

• Multifunctionality 

• Highways 

• Active Travel 

• Environment & Heritage 
 

Appendices Appendix 1: South Kesteven Local Plan Response to the Phase One 
Consultation 
Appendix 2: Proposed Site Plan 
Appendix 3: Consultation Brochure 
 

 

 

 

Report Author 

Shaza Brannon, Principal Planning Policy Officer  

 
 01476 406 282 

  Shaza.brannon@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth Regulatory All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Adam Murray – Principal Planning Officer 21 November 2022 

 

9

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

That the committee endorse the draft consultation response to Anglian Water and 
delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder to issue the final response. 

10



 

 
 

 

Executive Summary 
 

1 Description of site 
 

1.1 Anglian Water is proposing a new reservoir within the district of North Kesteven (site plan 

at appendix 2 and consultation brochure at appendix 3).  The proposed site is south-east 

of Sleaford, about halfway between Grantham and Boston.  Whilst the site is wholly within 

North Kesteven District, the reservoir will border South Kesteven District, just north of the 

A52; and north of the villages of Threekingham and Horbling. 

 

2 Description of the proposal 
 

2.1 The proposed reservoir will have a water surface area of 5km2 (a little smaller than 

Grafham Water); and the water will drain from the river Trent and river Witham. The 

reservoir could supply up to 166 million litres of water per day to 500,000 homes 

throughout the year.  The reservoir forms part of the requirements to address drought 

conditions in the East of England. 

 

2.2 The site plan at appendix 2 shows the reservoir and its embankments (shaded pink) and 

an indicative wider area of land for supporting infrastructure and during construction 

(shaded grey).  The wider area could include wildlife and environmental areas, spaces for 

leisure and recreation, education facilities and others. These features seek to ensure that 

the reservoir brings social and environmental benefits, alongside water supply. 

 

2.3 The consultation report prepared by Anglian Water states that the design will evolve as the 

project is refined and feedback received.  The principals guiding development are: 

 

Climate: 

• Managing water sustainably in a changing climate 

• Minimising carbon emissions and waste 

• Designing the project so that it is resilient to the effects of a changing climate 

             People 

• Making sure the project responds to local communities’ needs 

• Engaging meaningfully with people as the project is developed 

• Delivering a project that’s inclusive and improves wellbeing, with improved access 

to outdoor space. 

              Place 

• Developing the reservoir responsibly, in a way that’s sensitive to its place and 

context 

• Ensuring a nature led approach that looks to enhance the surrounding 

environment 

• Creating a project that’s been thoughtfully designed to be attractive 

Value 

• Ensuring the reservoir is delivered in a way that maximises benefits for the area 

11



 

 
 

• Exploring further possible benefits and looking at ways these could be supported 

or enabled 

• Making sure the project has a lasting and positive contribution to society. 

 

3 Project Timescales 
 

3.1 The consultation report includes an indicative timeline showing that this is the first stage of 

public consultation, with a second and third rounds of consultation expected in 2024 and 

2025 respectively.  Comments from this consultation will be used to refine the project 

proposals. 

 

3.2 The reservoir is recognised as a strategic regional asset and qualifies as a National 

Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP).  In accordance with the Planning Act 2008, a 

Development Consent Order will be submitted in 2025 with the expectation that 

construction of the reservoir would commence between 2029-31; and the reservoir would 

open between 2039-2041. 

  

4 SKDC response to consultation 
 

4.1 Anglian Water is seeking feedback to help develop the project design and understand 

what people would like to see as part of the project. This Phase One Consultation is the 

first formal consultation and as such the proposals are only indicative with limited detail. 

 

4.2 South Kesteven District Council is responding to the consultation as a neighbouring 

authority and a member of the South Lincolnshire Reservoir Partnership which includes 

other local authorities and stakeholders such as the Environment Agency and The Wildlife 

Trust. The Council’s draft consultation response can be found at Appendix 1. It is 

understood that stakeholders including Lincolnshire County Council, the Greater 

Lincolnshire Nature Partnership and the Wildlife Trust are responding separately. 

 

4.3 The Council notes that the reservoir will form part of the requirements to address drought 

conditions in the East of England rather than being needed to address any water security 

issues within the local area.  The Council therefore considers that creating a 

multifunctional reservoir which also benefits the surrounding area should be a key priority.   
 

4.4 The main issues identified by SKDC are as follows: 

• Loss of Land and Buildings 

• Multifunctionality 

• Highways 

• Active Travel 

• Environment & Heritage 

 

4.5 The Council understands that stakeholders such as Lincolnshire County Council and The 

Wildlife Trust are also preparing formal responses to the consultation. As such, SKDC has 

not sought comment from these organisations but would expect Anglian Water to take the 

comments into account. 

 

12



 

 
 

5 Next Steps 
 

South Kesteven District Council has signed up to the South Lincolnshire Reservoir 

Partnership Reservoir Memorandum of Understanding and will continue involvement as 

the project evolves.  Updates will be provided to the portfolio holder.  The next formal 

consultation stage is scheduled for 2024 and the Council will prepare a response which 

will be brought before Planning Committee again for endorsement. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Not applicable 

 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Not applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Planning Policy Team 

 South Kesteven District Council 

              St Peter’s Hill 

              Grantham 

              NG31 6PZ 

        Date: December 2022  

 

 

Anglian Water Services Limited 

Lancaster Way 

Ermine Business Park 

Huntingdon 

Cambridgeshire 

PE29 6XU 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

South Kesteven District Council - Response to South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase One 

Consultation  

Thank you for consulting South Kesteven District Council (the Council) on the proposed South 

Lincolnshire Reservoir.  Comments are as follows: 

The Council notes that the reservoir forms part of the requirements to address drought conditions in 

the East of England rather than being needed to address any water security issues within the local 

area.  The Council therefore considers that creating a multifunctional reservoir which also benefits 

the surrounding area should be a key priority, incorporating leisure, tourism, the creation of natural 

habitats, and active travel opportunities, in addition to water storage infrastructure.  

The reservoir presents many opportunities, but the potential negative impacts will need to be fully 

assessed and where necessary, mitigated. 

Loss of Land and Buildings 

The Council recognises that there will be significant land loss of Grade 3 agricultural land (as 

identified by DEFRA).  Further studies will be required to ascertain if it is Grade 3a or 3b and 

therefore defined as best and most versatile agricultural land.  The loss of agricultural land and 

properties would need to be weighed against the public benefits, both local and the wider area.   

Highways 

The Council is concerned that construction of the site and visitor numbers could impact the 

highways network including the A52, A15 the A1.  The council understands that Lincolnshire County 

Council have also been consulted and SKDC expects that any comments from LCC will be taken into 

account as the project progresses. 

15

Appendix 1



 

Active Travel 

Sufficient space for a circular cycle (and walking) routes around the reservoir should be traffic free to 

encourage cyclists of all ages and abilities.  However, it is noted that there are pinch points with the 

A52 on the southern boundary and the railway line of the north eastern boundary in terms of 

achieving a circular route. 

Cycle routes to the reservoir from the wider area should form part of the proposal, including 

infrastructure where required. 

Due to the proximity of the railway line to the reservoir, a new stop should be explored including a 

mobility hub. 

In terms of walking, the Cross Britain Way runs close to the site and connections from Horbling 

should be considered, including if existing public footpaths can be utilised. 

Environment & Heritage 

Noise pollution from the A52 and B1394 should be considered and the impact it may have on the 

enjoyment of the reservoir 

The potential impact on heritage assets, such as the medieval moat at Thorpe Latimer will need to 

be considered. 

A full climate change study should be undertaken covering a wide range of areas, from construction 

to operation. For example, the carbon footprint of construction and operation – transport, buildings 

etc. 

Landscape impact will need to be fully assessed and indicative sections should be provided to 

consultees early in the process.  Power cables cross the site and possible re-routing will need to be 

considered. 

Considering the significant land loss, the achievement of biodiversity net gain will need to be 

considered. 

South Kesteven District Council looks forward to continuing involvement in the project via the 

collaborative working group in accordance with the signed Memorandum of Understanding, and 

formal consultations. 

Yours faithfully 

Shaza Brannon  

Principal Planning Policy Officer  

South Kesteven District Council  

 

16



A15

A
15

A
15

A52

A52

A52
A52

A52

B1394

B1394

B1177

Heckington StationHeckington Station

Osbournby

Scredington

Threekingham

Swaton

Horbling

Helpringham

Great Hale

Little Hale

Spanby

Stow

Bridge End

South View

Northbeck

Walcot

Abbot’s Holt

Monks Wood

Great Gorse

Newton Gorse

Aswarby Park

Osbournby

Scredington

Threekingham

Swaton

Horbling

Helpringham

Great Hale

Little Hale

Spanby

Stow

Bridge End

South View

Northbeck

Walcot

Abbot’s Holt

Monks Wood

Great Gorse

Newton Gorse

Aswarby Park

SleafordSleaford

BostonBoston

Key:

Proposed site area for reservoir and its embankment

Initial area for supporting infrastructure, construction and additional measures

17

A
ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A proposed reservoir 
in Lincolnshire
Phase one consultation brochure

October 2022

19

Appendix 3



A message from our Water  
Resources Strategy Manager

Contents

It’s why we handle water with  
such care for the seven million 
customers we serve. 

That’s our duty – but our purpose 
goes even further. We are committed 
to bringing environmental and social 
prosperity to the region we serve 
through our commitment to  
‘Love Every Drop’.

The East of England is one of the 
driest and fastest-growing regions 
in the country and is home to many 
unique and precious landscapes that 
rely on water. This summer’s drought 
and heat wave are just some of the 
kinds of extreme weather challenges 
that are becoming more common. 

We are investing heavily today to  
help prepare for and meet 
tomorrow’s challenges.

We continue to lead the water sector 
in tackling leakage, exceeding our 
regulatory targets for over 10 years 
running. Work is already underway 
on a half-billion-pound investment in 

new pipes that will bring water  
from the wettest areas in the north  
of Lincolnshire to the drier areas in  
the south and east of our region.  
We are installing over one million 
smart meters in customer homes 
and are delivering a number of 
environmental programmes to 
protect our precious chalk  
streams and rivers. 

The proposed new reservoir in 
Lincolnshire – which will be around 
the size of Grafham Water near 
Huntingdon– will help to secure 
water supplies for the region, while 
protecting the environment from  
the effects of a changing climate. 

We expect it to enable wider social, 
environmental and economic benefits 
too. Just like our existing reservoirs 
such as Rutland Water and Grafham 
Water, the new reservoir will be a 
valuable leisure destination. It could 
also support and conserve wildlife 
and biodiversity, and provide a variety 
of places for people to explore, 
learn and get closer to nature.  

You can play an important role in 
helping to shape our proposals,  
so they best serve the needs  
of everyone.

We look forward to receiving  
your feedback.”

Foreword 3

Introduction 4

Creating a new destination 6

About Anglian Water 8

Future planning and developing projects 9

Why the reservoir is needed 10

Finding the best location 12

The proposed site area 14

What the reservoir could deliver 16

Help shape our proposals  18

Getting water to and from the reservoir 20

Wider opportunities 22

What you can influence  24

What happens next  27

Get in touch  28

Geoff Darch 
Water Resources  
Strategy Manager

Anglian Water

Rutland Water, East Midlands

“Water is vital to the health, wellbeing and 
economic prosperity of the East of England, 
and to maintaining a thriving natural 
environment that we can all enjoy. 

 32  

20



The new reservoir will store more water 
so it’s always on tap when we need it, 
meeting the challenges of a changing 
climate and a growing population.  
It will mean less water is taken from 
sensitive sources, such as chalk 
streams,helping us to protect and 
restore the environment.

Alongside meeting these challenges, 
the project presents significant 
social, economic and environmental 
opportunities. Our vision for the 
project goes beyond just building  
a reservoir. We want to create a place 
where water, people and nature  
come together.

That means creating space for wildlife, 
such as wetlands, alongside enabling 
new recreational and educational 
activities and natural places for people 
to explore. It also means creating new 
jobs and providing opportunities for 
local businesses and tourism. 

We’ve undertaken a detailed site 
selection study to identify  

a proposed site for the reservoir. 
We’ve considered a wide range of 
factors as part of this study from 
people and communities, landscape 
and environment, engineering 
requirements, and many more. 
 
Through this process we’ve  
identified a best-performing site –  
one which balances all of the  
factors we must consider, and that 
provides opportunities to unlock  
wider benefits.

The proposed site is south-east of 
Sleaford, about halfway between 
Grantham and Boston. During times of 
high rainfall, river flows from the nearby 
River Witham and River Trent would 
feed the reservoir with water. 

The water stored at the reservoir will 
then be treated and transported so it 
can be supplied to people’s homes and 
businesses throughout the year.

Provide your views on our proposals

In this booklet there is information 
about our proposals and what we’d 
welcome your feedback on.

Your local knowledge is very 
valuable. It will help us to further 
understand any potential impacts 
and opportunities and inform the 
development of our proposals  
going forward.

We’re keen to understand your views 
on the area we have identified for the 
reservoir and the features you’d like to 
see included as the design develops.

Our proposals are at an early stage. We understand the 
effect on those impacted by our proposals including 
homeowners, landowners and the nearby community.   
We are committed to working with everyone as the 
project develops and want to hear all views on our 
emerging proposals.

Our consultation is open 
from 12 October 2022 until  
21 December 2022.

See page 25 for how to 
provide your feedback.

We look forward to 
receiving your comments.

Anglian Water’s proposed new reservoir in 
Lincolnshire will secure water supply to our 
customers for future generations.

About the project

Our region is unique,  
low-lying and one of the 
driest in the UK:

We need to protect supplies in 
the face of climate change.

A 1/3  

less rainfall
than the UK average

Our region’s precious 
landscapes and 
environment need 
water to ensure 
their survival:

We need to reduce the amount of 
water we take from these sources. 

We need to protect and restore 
the environment. 

 the 
natural 
environment
relies on rivers and groundwater

Our region is one of the  
fastest growing in the country:

We need more water for 
more people.

175,000
new homes
in the next five years

20%
by 2050

population  
growth

Threekingham

Osbournby

Scredington

Sleaford 

A52A
15

Horbling

Billingborough

Folkingham

Swaton

Helpringham

Great Hale

B1394

B1177

 54  

21



Creating a new 
destination
Our existing reservoirs not only provide vital water resources for 
the region, they also provide a range of other benefits. They:

Our vision for the project goes beyond  
just building a reservoir. We want to create  
a place where water, people and nature 
come together.

That means creating space for wildlife,  
such as wetlands, alongside enabling  
new recreational and educational activities 
and natural places for people to explore.  
It also means creating new jobs and 
providing opportunities for local  
businesses and tourism.

• beaches and nature parks

• water sports and fishing clubs

• business and  
 community events

• cycling and walking trails

Support a whole host  
of activities and facilities 
including: 

• space for nature reserves 
 and parks

• wetlands and meadows

• educational nature workshops

• nature trails and bird watching 

• Rutland Water 

• Grafham Water 

• Alton Water 

• Pitsford Water 

• Ravensthorpe Reservoir 

• Hollowell Reservoir   

• Covenham Reservoir

Offer the chance for people 
to enjoy nature, and make 
sure wildlife can thrive with: 

Welcome two million  
people every year:

Rutland Water, East Midlands

Rutland Water, East Midlands

Grafham Water, Huntingdonshire

 76  

22



About Anglian Water Planning for the future 

As a purpose-led business, we 
recognise we have a huge opportunity 
– and responsibility – to contribute 
to the environmental and social 
wellbeing of the communities we 
serve. As one of the largest energy 
users in the East of England, we are 
also committed to becoming a net 
zero carbon business by 2030. 

The National Framework for Water 
Resources explores England’s  
long-term water needs. It considers 
what actions are required to provide 
water in the future, and how much is 
needed in each region. 

The five regional water resource 
groups develop regional plans. In our 
region, that’s Water Resources East 
(WRE). Regional plans set out more 
detail on the water supplies for the 
region, including the needs of  
the environment. The emerging WRE 
regional plan identifies the need for 
new reservoirs as a key element of the 
overall package to ensure our region 
can continue to thrive.

Water companies then develop a 
Water Resources Management Plan 
(WRMP) setting their plans and 
investments – such as improving 
efficiency; addressing leakage; 
restoring the environment; and 
building new water resources.

Our existing plan – published in 2019 – 
sets out what we need to do from 2020 
to 2045.  It identified new reservoirs as 
a crucial solution to meet the growing 
demands on water supplies in the  
East of England. 

The proposed reservoir is part of a 
process set up by the Regulators’ 
Alliance for Progressing Infrastructure 
Development (RAPID) to develop new 
strategic water resource solutions. 
RAPID is made up of the three 
water regulators – Water Services 
Regulation Authority (Ofwat), the 
Environment Agency (EA) and the 
Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI). 

RAPID assesses proposals for new 
large-scale, strategic investments 
to make sure water companies are 
progressing proposals that best  
meet their customers’ needs.  
This assessment is carried out when 
companies submit information about 

their proposals at points in time called 
‘gates’. There are five gates in total, 
and we are approaching gate two, 
which is in November 2022. 

When we initially progressed 
proposals for the new reservoir, 
we developed them in partnership 
with Affinity Water, which 
provides water to almost four 
million customers in southern 
England. This was because 
early assessments suggested 
customers of both companies  
needed to be supplied from a new 
reservoir in Lincolnshire.

Since then, regionally based decision 
making processes have shown that 
it would be better for Affinity Water 
to take its water from alternative 
sources. The need for a reservoir in 
Lincolnshire for the East of England  
is still clear and is well represented  
in the regional plans. 

That’s why Anglian Water will now 
continue to progress the project on 
behalf of Anglian Water customers. 
It’s a key part of our plans to invest 
today to help prepare for tomorrow.

Anglian Water supplies water and wastewater services to almost seven million customers 
in the East of England and Hartlepool. We also employ around 5,000 people in the region. 

Making sure we continue to have a reliable supply 
of water takes careful planning and co-ordination, 
nationally and regionally. 

Anglian Water is investing heavily 
today to help prepare for tomorrow. 
We continue to lead the water sector 
in tackling leakage, exceeding our 
regulatory targets in excess of 
10 years running. Work is already 
underway on a half-billion-pound 
investment to lay hundreds of 
kilometres of new, interconnecting 

Find out more 
Our new plan setting out what 
we need to do from 2025 to 
2050 will be published in draft 
in November 2022 for public 
consultation (a separate 
process from the consultation 
on the proposed reservoir in 
Lincolnshire). The proposal for 
the new reservoir in Lincolnshire 
will continue to be an important 
part our plans, and will feature 
in the WRMP.  Find out more 
about our WRMP at: https://
www.anglianwater.co.uk/about-
us/our-strategies-and-plans/
water-resources-management-
plan/ 

Find out more 
You can learn more about RAPID 
and the process to approve 
strategic infrastructure proposals 
here: www.ofwat.gov.uk/
regulated-companies/rapid/the-
rapid-gated-process/ 

Serving almost

7 million
customers across the East of 
England and Hartlepool

Lincolnshire

Northamptonshire

HertfordshireBuckinghamshire

Nottinghamshire

Rutland

Cambridgeshire

Essex

Bedfordshire

Su�olk

Norfolk

Lincolnshire

Northamptonshire

HertfordshireBuckinghamshire

Nottinghamshire

Rutland

Cambridgeshire

Essex

Bedfordshire

Su�olk

Norfolk

The largest water 
and water recycling 
company in England 
by geographic area HartlepoolHartlepool

pipes to bring water from the wettest 
areas in the north of Lincolnshire to 
the drier areas in the south and east of 
the region. We are also installing over 
one million smart meters in customer 
homes, and delivering a multitude of 
abstraction reduction programmes, 
protecting precious chalk streams 
and rivers.

 98  

23



Why the reservoir 
is needed 

Yet we face growing challenges to 
supply, from population growth in  
our region and a changing climate.  
To meet these challenges, we all  
have to play our part in balancing  
the needs of society, business, 
and the environment to enable a 
sustainable future.

We’re already working on new 
strategic pipelines to move water  

from wetter to drier parts of our 
region, installing smart meters in 
customers’ homes, and driving  
down leakage.

While all the investments we’re 
making today will help to keep taps 
running, the available supply will  
fall well below the demand for  
water unless we plan for future 
resources now.  

The proposed new reservoir in 
Lincolnshire has been identified as  
a large-scale investment in new  
water resources that we need and  
will play a critical role in securing 
water supply long into the future. 

Reservoirs provide a level of 
resilience, volume of water, and 
environmental opportunities that 
are not provided by other resource 
options such as desalination or water 
reuse. They take excess river water in 
winter, when flows are at their highest, 
and store it for use in dry summers, 
when water is more scarce.  

This enables us to make the most of 
wet weather to then service periods 
of dry weather. It also reduces the 
reliance on ground water sources, 
which in turn enables ground water 
recovery, such as to chalk streams.

When we looked at where we might 
best build reservoirs across our 
broader region, we identified rivers  
in both Lincolnshire and the Fens  
areas as having enough water  
surplus in the winter.  

Providing two large new reservoirs, 
one in each area, would give sufficient 
water supply to enable resilience to 
future droughts, while protecting our 
most sensitive environments.  

Together, the two reservoirs will 
make the most of the available 
resources and provide water to local 
communities and businesses across 
our region, including in Lincolnshire.

Water is vital to health 
and wellbeing, to the 
economic prosperity of 
the East of England, and 
to maintaining a thriving 
natural environment that 
we can all enjoy. 

A new reservoir in Lincolnshire

 1110  

24



How we identified a 
location for the reservoir

We completed multiple stages of 
assessments to identify our proposed 
site. This aimed to make sure we 
identified a location that would be 
suitable for hosting a reservoir, and 
aimed to minimise impacts on nearby 
areas and communities, and meet 
planning and regulatory frameworks. 

Looking across a broad search area 
we identified a large number of 

Through all our work to identify the  
best performing site, we’ve sought 
input from a range of stakeholders  
on our proposals, as they continued  
to develop.

Darren Smith 
Environment Agency, Officer

South Lincolnshire Water Partnership 

potential locations and assessed how 
they performed against a wide range 
of factors. Geology plays a significant 
role in selecting a site for a reservoir; 
equally we needed to exclude areas  
of land where the reservoir could not 
be located due to existing restrictions  
or protections.

The site locations that performed 
best at each stage were taken forward 

and assessed again, in more detail, 
against a range of criteria including 
those below. 

At each stage the list got shorter until 
we identified a best-performing site 
– one which balances all of the factors 
we considered, and that also provides 
significant opportunities to unlock  
wider benefits.

This has ensured our work has been 
informed by those responsible for  
the local area and the region’s 
environment, alongside our own teams. 

We have engaged with:

•  national bodies such as Natural 
England, the Environment Agency, 
and Historic England 

• the local authorities in Lincolnshire  
 to keep informed of their own   
 proposals for the region,   
 and seek their opinion on   
 how the reservoir could minimise  
 potential impacts, and maximise  
 potential benefits

•  existing water-focused groups 
including Water Resources East 
and the South Lincolnshire Water 
Partnership, of which Anglian Water 
is a member 

•  agriculture groups to hear their 
views on the importance of water  
to agriculture as a key industry for 
the local economy

This work has helped guide and inform 
the development of our proposals so 
far to ensure we’re assessing factors 
that are important for the region.

These groups and organisations, 
alongside others, are also being 
encouraged to provide their feedback 
to this consultation, so we can continue 
to take their views into account.

We’ve carried out a detailed site selection study to identify the proposed site for the reservoir. 

The site selection process 

Working with stakeholders

Find out more  

If you’d like more information 
on how we identified a best 
performing site and the 
information we considered, 
please read our Site Selection 
Report (see page 26 for details).

It’s more important than 
ever that we work together 
to secure water for people 
and the environment.  
Over recent months, the 
South Lincolnshire Water 
Partnership (SLWP) has 
played an important role 
in influencing the ongoing 
development of Anglian 
Water’s Lincolnshire 
Reservoir option. I’d 
encourage people to 
find out more about the 
proposals and play your part 
in shaping the outcome.

The factors we assessed

Engineering: the suitability 
of the ground and underlying 
material for the construction of 
the reservoir embankment, the 
need to design and build in a safe 
and carbon efficient manner, 
traffic and transport movements, 
and risk of flooding.

Carbon: the carbon emissions 
related to the construction 
and operation of the reservoir, 
including water industry targets 
to be operationally Net Zero  
by 2030.

People and community: 
the effects on the local area 
from the reservoir and during 
construction, including on 
agriculture, local businesses, 
homes and communities.

Environment: the effect on 
natural environment features 
such as nature conservation  
sites, and sites of historic and 
cultural importance such as  
listed buildings, and  
scheduled monuments. 

Landscape: the effect on 
protected landscapes such as 
Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty, local landscape 
character, and views.

 

Wider benefits:  the potential 
opportunities the location of the 
reservoir could offer for measures 
to support biodiversity; the local 
economy; reducing flood risk; 
creating links to communities; 
leisure and tourism.

Economic: the costs for  
the reservoir over its whole 
life cycle – from planning and 
building through to its ongoing 
operation, including the need  
to deliver value for money to  
our customers.

 1312  

25



A15

A
15

A
15

A52

A52

A52
A52

A52

B1394

B1394

B1177

Heckington StationHeckington Station

Osbournby

Scredington

Threekingham

Swaton

Horbling

Helpringham

Great Hale

Little Hale

Spanby

Stow

Bridge End

South View

Northbeck

Walcot

Abbot’s Holt

Monks Wood

Great Gorse

Newton Gorse

Aswarby Park

Osbournby

Scredington

Threekingham

Swaton

Horbling

Helpringham

Great Hale

Little Hale

Spanby

Stow

Bridge End

South View

Northbeck

Walcot

Abbot’s Holt

Monks Wood

Great Gorse

Newton Gorse

Aswarby Park

The proposed 
site area

When assessing the most suitable sites, this 
location was found to be the most appropriate 
for building a new reservoir, and, on balance, 
performed best across a range of the key factors 
we assessed. It also provides the potential 
opportunities to deliver wider benefits to the 
regional economy and neighbouring communities.

Building the reservoir and  
its connecting infrastructure
To build the reservoir, we will excavate soil and 
underlying material from the site and use this to 
create a surrounding embankment that will  
contain the water in the reservoir. 

In addition to the embankment, the primary 
infrastructure needed is: 

• a water treatment plant

• water pumping equipment and pipelines

• inlet/outlet facilities within the reservoir

•  other equipment for operating and 
maintaining the reservoir 

Your consultation feedback will help inform 
our design process. We will provide further 
information on the location of this infrastructure 
as part of a future consultation, where you will be 
able to provide feedback on these proposals.

Through our site selection process  
we identified that the best performing 
site for the proposed reservoir is an  
area south-east of Sleaford, as shown  
on the map.  

The proposed site area includes:

Pink area: area for the reservoir 
and its embankments.

Grey area: this is an initial wider 
area of land we could need for 
supporting infrastructure and 
during construction. This is also 
where we could include wildlife and 
environmental areas, spaces for 
leisure and recreation, education 
facilities and others. These are 
the additional developments that 
would help ensure the reservoir 
brings social and environmental 
benefits, alongside water supply. 
This area is only indicative at this 
stage and is subject to change 
following consultation, and as we 
develop our proposals.

55 million  
cubic metres 

 Volume 

(50 million usable volume)

The reservoir 
could supply up to: 

166 million litres
of water per day  

Have your say
We’d like to hear your views on 
the areas we’ve identified for the 
reservoir and its embankments 
(pink) and the area of land around 
it that would support additional 
infrastructure and measures (grey).

We welcome any local knowledge  
you may have that we should be 
aware of before we develop our 
proposals further. See page 25 for 
how to provide feedback.

Reservoir
needs to be in supply by 

2040500,000 
homes
throughout the year  

Water will come  
from rivers  

Trent and 
Witham

5km2
Size: 

(a little smaller than  
Grafham Water)

Water surface area

 1514  

26



What the reservoir could deliver

Its design will evolve as we continue 
to refine our proposals for the 
project, based on further studies and 
feedback received from this phase 
and future phases of consultation.  

 Alongside meeting the challenges 
of a changing climate and growing 
population, the project presents 
significant social and environmental 
opportunities. Our vision for the 
project goes beyond just building  
a reservoir. We want to create a place 
where water, people and nature  
come together. 

That means creating space for  
wildlife, such as wetlands, alongside 
enabling new recreational and 
educational activities and natural 
places for people to explore.  
It also means creating new jobs  
and providing opportunities for  
local businesses and tourism. 

The table below explains the broad 
principles that are guiding the 
development of the design for 
the reservoir. There is also more 
information on the features we  
could include and a concept  
design on the following pages. 

We plan to include features that local 
communities would value and use, like 
those shown across some of these 
images. We would like to identify 
opportunities to deliver ecological 
benefits and promote sustainability. 
And we will find ways to contribute to 
the health and economy of the area. 

This is an opportunity to create a 
place that everyone values. 

CLIMATE

•  managing water 
sustainably in a 
changing climate

•  minimising carbon 
emissions and waste

•  designing the  
project so that it is 
resilient to the effects 
of a changing climate 

PEOPLE

•  making sure the project 
responds to local 
communities’ needs

•  engaging meaningfully 
with people as the 
project is developed

•  delivering a project 
that’s inclusive and 
improves wellbeing, 
with improved access  
to outdoor space  

PLACE 

•  developing the reservoir 
responsibly, in a way 
that’s sensitive to its 
place and context

•  ensuring a nature-
led approach that 
looks to enhance 
the surrounding 
environment 

•  creating a project 
that’s been 
thoughtfully designed 
to be attractive

VALUE 

•  ensuring the reservoir 
is delivered in a way 
that maximises benefits 
for the area

•   exploring further 
possible benefits and 
looking at ways these 
could be supported  
or enabled 

•  making sure the project 
has a lasting and 
positive contribution  
to society 

We’re at a very early stage in our proposals for the reservoir. 

Have your say
We’d like to hear your views on 
the wider features you’d like to 
see included as we develop a 
design for the reservoir. 

See page 18 to see our early 
concept design and page 25 
for how to provide feedback. 

 1716  

27



SCREDINGTON
HELPRINGHAM

SWATON

POTENTIAL OPPORTUNITIES

Education Centre

Visitor Centre

Footpath improvements

New cycleway provision

Sustainable transport 
opportunities

Sailing/ watersports

Biodiversity opportunities

Water treatment works

Wetland habitat areas within 
reservoir

Renewable energy 
opportunities

Multi-use recreation routes

Opportunities for 
connecting infrastucture 
enhancement

Opportunities for cycle/
footpath connections

Biodiversity opportunities

Water treatment works

Wetland habitat areas within 
reservoir

Multi-use recreation routes

Opportunities for cycle / 
footpath connections
Opportunities for green / blue 
infrastructure enhancement

Education Centre

Visitor Centre

Footpath improvements

New cycleway provision

Sustainable transport 
opportunities
Renewable energy 
opportunities

Sailing / watersports

Key:

Help shape  
our proposals 

As part of this consultation we have 
provided a very early concept design 
for the reservoir to help stimulate 
thought and discussion. It shows 
some of the potential features we 
hope to include in the reservoir like 
wildlife areas, recreation and water 
sports, green infrastructure like 
cycleways and renewable energy,  
and others. This will be developed 
further as the project progresses 
taking into account your feedback.   

The embankment illustration gives an 
early indication of what the reservoir 
could look like. The outer faces of 
the embankments will be designed 
to reflect the character of the 
existing landscape. The height of the 
embankments would vary around the 
reservoir, ranging from 4 meters, to 
potentially up to 25 metres in places. 

The embankment face will be 
designed to ensure there is a 
more organic line at its top, using 
vegetation and trees in surrounding 

areas to visually ‘break up’ the 
landscape to blend with the existing 
nature and character of the area.  
Where villages are close to the 
embankments, we will carefully 
consider views to and from  
the reservoir. 

Any buildings required for the 
reservoir will also be thoughtfully 
designed so they integrate as 
effectively as possible into the 
existing landscape, using land  
form and planting. 

The concept plans shown are indicative at this stage and will develop 
following more detailed design and in response to consultation

Example illustration of embankment 
showing height at approximately 20 meters. 
Location shown is at the northern end of 
the proposed site between Scredington 
and Helpringham, with the existing road 
diverted to run alongside the embankment. 

You have a role to play in helping to shape the design of the 
reservoir and we’re keen to get feedback from local people. 

Threekingham

Osbournby

Scredington

Sleaford 

A52A
15

Horbling

Billingborough

Folkingham

Swaton

Helpringham

Great Hale

B1394

B1177

Proposed reservoir in Lincolnshire: indicative community 
and environmental opportunities for consultation

Have your say
Do you have any comments  
on the early concept design at 
this stage or the features you 
would like to see included in  
the reservoir? 

See page 25 for how to  
provide feedback.

Rutland Water, East Midlands

 1918  

28



   
   

   
   

SO
U

TH
 F

O
RT

Y 
FO

OT DRAIN

RI
V

ER
 W

IT
H

A
M

RIV
ER

 TR
EN

T

THE W
ASH

NEWARK

GRANTHAM

BOURNE

LINCOLN

SLEAFORD

BOSTON

KING’S LYNN

RIVER WITHAM

DISTRIBUTION WATER SUPPLY

Getting water to and 
from the reservoir

We are currently in the process of 
exploring potential routes and will 
consult on these proposals at the 
next phases of consultation, where 
we will seek your feedback.

The illustration opposite gives an 
indication of the facilities we would 
need and how it all links together. 
Much of this infrastructure is likely 
to be installed below ground.

The location of the supporting infrastructure needed to move water 
to and from the reservoir is not included in this consultation.

We will provide our proposals for these facilities in future 
consultations, and seek your feedback.

A further important part 
of our proposals will be the 
facilities we need to get 
water to the reservoir and 
then from the reservoir to 
the homes, businesses  
and essential services  
that need it.

This sketch illustrates how these elements may fit together in the landscape (indicative only)

Reservoir

Watercourse

Potable transfer

Raw water transfer

Potential connectivity

Key:Supporting infrastructure

 2120  

29



The reservoir would be a once in a 
generation investment and, in our 
early engagement with stakeholders, 
they have been encouraging us to 
think about how the reservoir could 
be part of a wider system. This could 
bring social, environmental, and 
economic benefits, in addition to 
those we hope to create from the 
reservoir itself.

Potential wider plans and 
opportunities, might include: 

•  Water sharing and license trading  
to mitigate drought crop losses  
or facilitate growing higher  
value crops

•  New and improved waterways 
to enhance navigation, improve 
habitats and reduce flood risk

•  Improvements in soil health and 
habitat creation to increase carbon 
sequestration and biodiversity 

•  New water/country parks for 
communities to enjoy

•  Natural flood measures, including 
bankside washlands to be flooded 
in high flows to protect people, 
property, and agricultural land

This thinking is at an early stage 
and no decisions have been made 
on exactly what plans could be 
brought forward, the planning 
permissions we might need, or how 
these wider opportunities could 
be funded. To realise the vision will 
require leadership and funding from 
numerous stakeholders in addition  
to Anglian Water. 

These opportunities are not part of 
the autumn 2022 consultation on the  
reservoir. However, it’s important  
that together we start investigating 
these ideas now as they could 
influence how the reservoir  
is designed.

As the reservoir project develops, so 
too will the opportunities for the wider 
system.  We will have more detailed 
discussions with stakeholders and 
communities on these ideas over the 
further phases of the project.

Wider opportunities
As well as a vital water 
resource and new 
destination, the reservoir 
also has the potential to 
contribute to wider benefits 
for the East of England.

 2322  

30



Have your say

Submitting your comments

You can submit feedback to us in 
several different ways: 

•  Using the project website:  
www.lincsreservoir.co.uk  

Submit feedback on our website 
using our online form and interactive 
map. The mapping tool lets you pin 
your comments to different locations 
on the proposed site area.

•  Sending an email to:  
info@lincsreservoir.co.uk 

•  Sending written feedback to us at 
our freepost address:  
Freepost Lincs Reservoir 

You can write us a letter or send hard 
copy feedback forms, which will be 
available at events in community 
venues or by request. 

Your feedback will help us to develop the project design 
and understand what people would like to see as part of the 
project. All feedback you share will be reviewed, recorded, 
and carefully considered as we refine our proposals.

We understand the effect on those impacted by our proposals including 
homeowners, landowners and the nearby community. We are committed to 
working with everyone as the project develops and want to hear all views on 
our emerging proposals.

This consultation is open from 12 October until 21 December 2022

Please make sure you submit your feedback to us by 23:59 on 21 December 2022.

What you can influence 
at this time

Your local knowledge is very 
valuable to us and we welcome 
any feedback you have on our 
proposals. It will help us to further 
understand any potential impacts 
and opportunities from the 
project. And it will help inform the 
development of our proposals 
going forward, including the 
features you’d like to see. 

This is our first phase of 
consultation, and we plan to hold 
at least two further phases of 
consultation as the proposals 
develop. Find out more about the 
consenting process we are  
required to follow on page 27.

For this consultation we are asking 
for your feedback on:

• the pink area we have    
 identified for the reservoir and  
 its embankments

• the grey area we have identified  
 for supporting infrastructure   
 and during construction. This is  
 also where we could include   
 wildlife and environmental areas,  
 spaces for leisure and recreation,  
 education facilities and others 

• the very early concept design for  
 the reservoir and the features   
 you would like to be considered  
 in the design of the reservoir   
 as it’s developed

However, there are some aspects 
not open to influence. That’s 
because they cannot be shaped  
for technical reasons, such as  
safety and engineering 
requirements, or because they  
have been and continue to be 
established and consulted on 
through other processes. 

This includes:

•  The project’s need case  
(set by the Water Resources 
Management Plan process)

•  The capacity of the reservoir  
(set by the Water Resources 
Management Plan process)

See page nine for details of our 
Water Resources Management Plan.

There are many factors that we are considering when it comes to developing 
the design of the reservoir, and how we might build it. Your feedback is a key 
part of how we will develop the design of the reservoir.

Help us deliver the best 
possible project  

Find out how to provide 
feedback, plus information 
about the planning 
application process we 
need to follow, on the next 
pages in this booklet.

 2524  

31



This reservoir is recognised as being 
a strategic regional asset, so much 
so that it qualifies as a Nationally 
Significant Infrastructure Project 
(NSIP). This is due primarily to the  
size of the scheme and the number  
of properties it will be able to supply.  
We will therefore follow the 
procedures set out in the Planning  
Act 2008 which provides the 
framework for how major projects  
are developed and consented.

We will apply to the Planning 
Inspectorate, who act on behalf of the 
Secretary of State for Environment, 
Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) for 
permission to build the reservoir.  

Our application would then be 
considered by the Planning 
Inspectorate during an ‘examination’, 
likely to last six months. After 
examination, the Planning Inspectorate 
will issue a recommendation to the 
Secretary of State who will then make  
a final decision as to whether the 
project is consented. 

The permission is called a 
Development Consent Order (DCO). 

Local people and stakeholders have 
an important role in influencing 
how the reservoir is developed and 
designed. During this pre-application 
phase, we will be consulting with local 

Timeline and what happens next 
This is the first phase of consultation on our proposals for the reservoir. 
Although we are at an early stage, we want to give you the opportunity to 
influence how we develop our proposals for the reservoir. We plan to hold 
at least two further phases of consultation as the proposals develop.

The planning application process

Reservoir  
open

2029-2031

2039-2041

Construction 
of reservoir 
starts

Applying 
for  DCO

Constructing
the reservoir

2025
DCO 
application 
submitted

2027
Secretary of 
State decision

2026-2027
DCO 
examination

Autumn 2022
First 
consultation

Refining our 
proposals

2025
Third 
consultation

have 
your say

have 
your say

have 
your say

2024
Second 
consultation

Please note: this timeline is indicative only and may change as our proposals develop

We have published the following documents for 
the consultation. They can be viewed online at  
 www.lincsreservoir.co.uk and are available by 
contacting our project team.

Site selection report: an explanation of  
the process we have followed to identify  
a proposed site for the reservoir.

Consultation brochure: an overview of  
our proposals for the reservoir and how  
to take part in the consultation.

Approach to consultation: an outline  
of our plans for consultation.

Sleaford Library, 13 - 16 Market Place,  
Sleaford, NG34 7SR

Donington Library, 25 High St,  
Donington, PE11 4TA

Ruskington Library, Station Rd,  
Ruskington, NG34 9DD

Heckington Library,  
Heckington, NG34 9RE

You can also find out more about the project and meet 
the team at our consultation events and webinars.

You can pick-up information at community venues.

Find out more  

Supporting documents
Reference copies of these documents are  
also available at the following locations:

You can see where you will have the chance to comment on our proposals on this timeline 

Community events Date Time

Scredington Community Centre, 30 Church Ln, Scredington, NG34 0AG Tuesday 1 November 11:30am – 3pm 

Helpringham Memorial Hall, 6 George St, Helpringham, NG34 0RS Monday 7 November 5pm – 8pm 

Billingborough Village Hall, Chapel St, Billingborough, NG34 0QH Friday 11 November 3:30pm – 7pm 

Heckington Village Hall, 9-11 High St, Heckington, NG34 9RA Saturday 12 November 10:30am – 4pm 

Community webinars Date Time

Register to attend on our website: www.lincsreservoir.co.uk
Monday 31 October, 
Wednesday 16 November 

6pm – 7pm 

Scredington Community Centre 30 Church Ln, Scredington, NG34 0AG

Helpringham Memorial Hall 6 George St, Helpringham, NG34 0RS

Billingborough Village Hall Chapel St, Billingborough, NG34 0QH

Heckington Village Hall 9-11 High St, Heckington, NG34 9RA

The Source Riverside Church Riverside Church, Southgate, Sleaford, NG34 7RY

Sleaford Library 13 - 16 Market Place, Sleaford, NG34 7SR

Donington Library 25 High St, Donington, Spalding, PE11 4TA

people, affected landowners and 
stakeholders to gather feedback to 
help shape our proposals before we 
submit the application for the DCO. 

Our autumn 2022 consultation is  
the first phase in a multi-phase 
approach – at least two more 
consultations will follow.

The DCO would also grant powers 
to compulsorily purchase land and 
property required for the project, 
although our strong preference would 
be to purchase any required land 
and property by agreement. We are 
directly engaging with those who may 
be most affected by our proposals.

You can find out more about the  
DCO process here: 

https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.
uk/application-process/the-process/ 

We’ll be able to give people more information on 
how we would construct the reservoir (and the 
impacts of this) later, when we have developed our 
proposals further. We will be asking for people’s 
views on this in future consultations. 

 2726  

32



info@lincsreservoir.co.uk

0800 915 2491

Freepost Lincs Reservoir 

www.lincsreservoir.co.uk  

EMAIL

FREEPHONE

WRITE

WEBSITE

Get in touch with the project team by:

28  33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Planning Committee 
 
 

1 December 2022 
 
Report of Cllr Nick Robins, Cabinet 
Member for Planning & Planning Policy  
 
 

 

 

Authority Monitoring Report 
 

Report Author 

Shaza Brannon, Principal Planning Policy Officer 

 Shaza.brannon@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The annual publication of the Authority’s Monitoring Report (AMR) is a statutory 

requirement for all Local Authorities. The AMR covers the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 

March 2022 and reviews progress in preparing development plans and the extent to which 

South Kesteven District Council’s policies have been put into effect.   

 

Recommendations 

 
That the Committee: 
Endorses the 2021-2022 Authority Monitoring Report (Appendix A) and agrees to 
it being published via the Council’s website. 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

35

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the report or the AMR which 

is prepared in house.  

 

1.2 Alison Hall-Wright – Assistant Director of Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.3 Regulation 34 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 

Regulation 2012 requires local planning authorities to publish an AMR annually.  

 

1.4 Graham Watts – Assistant Director of Governance 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.5 If the AMR is not published the Council would risk non-compliance with regulation 

34 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulation 2012 

which requires local planning authorities to publish an AMR annually.  

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.6 There are no identified Health and Safety implications. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.7 The AMR is a monitoring report of the adopted Local Plan.  The Local Plan is 

subject to a Statement of Community Involvement which seeks to ensure that 

Local Plan preparation and consultation is inclusive and meets the development 

needs of South Kesteven District’s community.  

 

Is an Equality Impact Assessment required?  

 

1.8 An Equality Impact Assessment was undertaken on the Council’s Local Plan 
policies through an assessment of the adopted Local Plan (2011-2036). The 
Authority Monitoring Report monitors the effectiveness of these policies and does 
not introduce new policy. As such, a further Equality Impact Assessment is not 
required.  
 

36



1.9 The recommendations set out a proposal for how the Council can fulfil its 
obligations in line with planning regulations. There are no staffing implications for 
the Council.  

 

Human Resources 

 

1.10 There are no identified Human Resource implications. 

 

Community Safety  

 

1.11 There are no identified community safety implications 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.12 There are no identified mental and emotional wellbeing implications 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.13 The Council has employed a Sustainability and Climate Change Officer, who 

supports the cross-council contribution to the Carbon footprint and reductions 

opportunities plan for the council. 

https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/south-kesteven-district-council-

0e5eec3.pdf 

 

1.14 The Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) monitors the policies within the Local Plan 

which help shape the environment and respond to climate change. It also monitors 

the stages of the emerging Local Plan review which will consider the Council’s 

declaration of a climate emergency.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The Council’s Vision is to “be the best district in which to live, work and visit”. The 

Local plan and Planning have a key role to play in realising this vision. Housing that 

meets the needs of all residents is a key priority for South Kesteven District Council 

(SKDC). As detailed in the Corporate Plan (2020-2023), the Council considers high 

quality housing as essential for all and is committed to working with partners to 

provide this. Delivering the growth of the economy and building healthy and strong 

communities are also key themes in the Corporate Plan; these are integral to the 

policies in the Council’s Local Plan and delivering sustainable development.  

 

2.2 There is a statutory requirement for the Council to publish up-to-date information 

which has been collected for monitoring purposes, and report on the progress 

against the Local Development Scheme. The requirements are set out in Regulation 

34 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The requirements include:  

 

37

https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/south-kesteven-district-council-0e5eec3.pdf
https://data.climateemergency.uk/media/data/plans/south-kesteven-district-council-0e5eec3.pdf


• Assessing progress of any Local Plan and supplementary planning 

documents against the timetable and milestones set out in the Local 

Development Scheme (LDS) 

• Assessing the extent to which Local Plan policies are being implemented 

• Number of completed dwellings, including affordable completions 

• Details and progress of Neighbourhood Plans being prepared 

• Information relating to Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) receipts and 

expenditure where CIL charge has been introduced and; 

• Details information relating to co-operation under the Duty to Co-operate 

(Section 33A) 

 

2.3 The annual publication of an Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) is considered 

appropriate for meeting the requirements. It is good practice to produce an AMR 

annually to both monitor the Local Plan and aid decision-making when assessing 

planning applications.  

 

2.4 The Monitoring and Implementation Framework appendix of the Local Plan 

assesses the performance of the Local Plan policies and overall progress in 

delivering the strategic objectives of the Local Plan. Indicators were established to 

provide information about whether policies were achieving their objectives, 

determine targets being met, and verify whether policies in the Local Plan remain 

relevant or require updating.  

 

2.5 The AMR presented in Appendix A is the second report prepared since the 

adoption of the Local Plan 2011-2036 and monitors the period 1 April 2021 to 31 

March 2022.  

 

2.6 The AMR includes information on the implementation of the Local Development 

Scheme, the Local Plan Review, Supplementary Planning Documents, 

Neighbourhood Plans and information relating to co-operation under the Duty to 

Cooperate.  
 

2.7 Data monitoring performance against Local Plan policies has been collected and is 

reported within the AMR. This includes data on housing, employment, natural and 

built environments, renewable energy, town centres, infrastructure and developer 

contributions, and community facilities.  
 

2.8 The AMR provides a baseline which can be built upon as the policies within the 

Local Plan take effect. Many of the targets within the Monitoring and Implementation 

Framework appendix to the Local Plan are to be achieved over the Local Plan 

period. Therefore, by its very nature, the two year’s monitoring does not provide a 

true reflection of performance of all Local Plan policies.  
 

2.9 The data collected in the AMR provides context to inform the review of the Local 

Plan. The AMR also reports progress on the timetable and milestones for the 

38



preparation of Planning Policy documents including progress towards the Local 

Plan Review. 
 

 

 

Headline Monitoring Results 

 

2.10 Detailed below are headline monitoring results taken from the AMR. 

 

Local Development Scheme 

2.11 The Local Development Scheme (LDS) is a project plan which sets out the timetable 

to produce new or revised development plan documents which will form the 

Council’s Local Development Plan.  

 

2.12 The Council is reviewing the current Local Plan (2011-2036) adopted in January 

2020 in line with the Local Development Scheme. The review process began in April 

2020. The ‘Issues and Options’ Consultation was undertaking in October 2020. A 

Call for sites was launched at the same to establish the availability of land for 

development within the district.  
 

2.13 The previous LDS was approved at the start of the Local Plan review in August 

2020. Publishing an LDS and keeping it up to date is a regulatory requirement. In 

October 2022 Cabinet approved a revised LDS to reflect delays in the timetable of 

the Local Plan Review.  

 

2.14 All policies within the Local Plan are being implemented and remain part of the 

development plan.  
 

Housing Delivery 

2.15 A total of 485 new homes (net) were completed between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 

2022. Completions in the four market towns (Bourne, Grantham, Stamford, and The 

Deepings) accounted for 77% of all completions. Grantham accounted for 32% of 

urban completions.  
 

2.16 During this monitoring period, 116 affordable homes were completed, which 

accounts for 23.9% of the total completions. 60% of affordable completions were in 

the market towns and 40% in Large Villages and 100% on qualifying sites set to 

deliver at least 30% or 20% in the urban area of Grantham.  

 

2.17 A mixture of house types were delivered within the district. A greater value of semi-

detached and detached homes were delivered, with 3-bedroomed homes the most 

prominent size of housing.  
 

2.18 A 5 year housing land supply is a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to 

provide 5 years’ worth of housing (and appropriate buffer) against a housing 

requirement set out in adopted strategic policies, or against a local housing need 

39



figure. The council’s five-year housing land supply assessment for 2021-2026 was 

confirmed through and Annual Position Statement. A 5.22 years’ supply was 

confirmed for one year until 31 October 2022.    
 

Neighbourhood Plans 

2.19 Neighbourhood Plans set out a vision for an area and should contain planning 

policies for the use and development of land. 

 

2.20 A map showing the full coverage of adopted and areas designated for 

neighbourhood planning is reflected within the AMR. During this monitoring period 

two Neighbourhood Plans were formally adopted (Old Somerby and The Deepings). 

The Council continues to work with neighbourhood planning groups and other areas 

in developing neighbourhood plans. 

 

Duty to Cooperate 

2.21 Under the 2011 Localism Act and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 

local planning authorities have a legal Duty to Cooperate with other local planning 

authorities and organisations to seek to address strategic planning matters that are 

driven by larger than local issues that are likely to have an impact beyond their 

immediate Local Plan area. The Duty to Cooperate is the mechanism for ensuring 

the right issues are addressed, in the right way, and with the right partners to 

maximise the effectiveness of policy and plan-making.  
 

2.22 The Council continues to fulfil the Duty to Cooperate with neighbouring authorities 

and other bodies. During this monitoring period, the Council has engaged on key 

strategic matters including the delivery of a cross boundary development Stamford 

North which extends into Rutland County; and on the emerging Strategic 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan  

 

Local Plan Policy Performance 

2.23 The AMR concludes that whilst the current Local Plan is generally performing well, 

a number of targets have not been met. Two key areas relate to the provision of 

sufficient Gypsy and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople sites, and housing 

delivery. The Council will be reviewing housing needs and how they can be met 

through the Local Plan review to tackle any under provision in terms of delivery 

through the local plan process.  

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The intention is to collate an annual summary of key facts and figures to 

demonstrate implementation of local plan policies. The information that can be 

included in the AMR is not limited to the statutory requirements, and consequently 

where there are areas of activity that Members consider should be included to 

reflect local priorities, is open for the Committee to consider requesting the inclusion 

of such information.  

 

40



4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Publication of monitoring reports is a statutory requirement which must be published 

on-line as soon as they become available to enable the public to be informed of the 

monitoring information collated. It is for this reason the ‘do nothing’ option was 

discounted.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Regulation 34 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 

Regulation 2012 requires Local Planning Authorities to publish an AMR. As the 

report is factual, there are no feasible alternatives to publishing the document. The 

AMR provides clarity around progress on the delivery if the Local plan’s objectives 

and policies; and will help to ensure that the emerging Local Plan’s policies are fit 

for purpose.  

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The Authority Monitoring Report relies on information from many of the council’s 

services with detailed input from Planning Policy, Economic Development and 

Regeneration and Housing. 

 

6.2  The AMR is factual and there are no regulatory requirements to consult.  

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 The Localism Act 2011, published online and available via:  
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted  

 

7.2  South Kesteven District Council Local Plan 2011-2036, Monitoring and 
Implementation Framework, published January 2020 and available online via:  
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26204  

 

7.3  National Planning Policy Framework, updated 20 July 2021 published online and 
available via:  
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf  

 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix A: Authority Monitoring Report (1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022).  

 

 

41

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26204
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Authority Monitoring Report 

  1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

     December 2022 

43

Appendix A



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

i 
 

Executive Summary 
 

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 introduced the requirement for local 

planning authorities to produce an Annual Monitoring Report in order to monitor policy 

implementation and progress made against the Local Development Scheme (LDS).  

Authority Monitoring Reports (AMR) (formally known as Annual Monitoring Reports) are an 

important tool to monitor the implementation of the Council’s LDS. Previous Government 

guidance on monitoring indicators has been revoked and superseded by new Planning 

Regulations. Although these regulations prescribe certain information that these Authority 

Monitoring Reports need to contain, there is significant scope for the Local Planning Authority 

(LPA) to determine what indicators to include.  

The most recent AMR was published in 2021 which was the first AMR since the adoption of 

the  Local Plan (January 2020). This is the second Authority Monitoring Report prepared since 

the adoption of the Local Plan and monitors the development plan over the period 1st April 

2021 – 31st March 2021.  

This AMR also reports upon the list of indicators contained within the Monitoring and 

Implementation Framework at Appendix 4 of the Local Plan.  

 

The following summaries the key findings of the report: 

• The review of the Local Plan commenced in April 2020 

• 485 new homes were completed (net), including 116 Affordable homes 

• 77% of all completions were within the four main market towns, with 32% in Grantham 

• As at 31st March 2021, South Kesteven had a fixed 5 year housing land supply of 4,001 

dwellings equivalent to 5.22 years supply for one year (until 31st October 2022) 

• Two Neighbourhood Plans were formally adopted (Old Somerby and The Deepings) 

• Two Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) were adopted: Rutland and South 

Kesteven Design Guidelines SPD; and the Rectory Farm SPD.  

• The Council reviewed and adopted an updated Statement of Community Involvement 

 

 

44

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26202
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26204
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26204


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

ii 
 

Table of Contents 

 
Executive Summary ............................................................................................................... i 

Section 1: Introduction .......................................................................................................... 1 

Overview ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Requirements of the Authority Monitoring Report .............................................................. 1 

Content .............................................................................................................................. 2 

Section 2: South Kesteven Profile ......................................................................................... 3 

Overall Context .................................................................................................................. 3 

Location ............................................................................................................................. 4 

Population ......................................................................................................................... 5 

Section 3: Authority Monitoring Report Local Planning Regulations ...................................... 6 

Local Development Scheme .............................................................................................. 6 

Other Local Development Documents ............................................................................... 7 

Statement of Community Involvement ............................................................................... 7 

Adopted Development Plan Documents at Time of Publication of AMR............................. 7 

Neighbourhood Planning ................................................................................................... 8 

Duty to Cooperate ........................................................................................................... 10 

Community Infrastructure Levy ........................................................................................ 11 

Brownfield Register ......................................................................................................... 11 

Implementation of Policy ................................................................................................. 11 

Section 4: Monitoring .......................................................................................................... 12 

Housing in South Kesteven ............................................................................................. 12 

Economic Prosperity ........................................................................................................ 26 

Protecting and Enhancing the Natural and Built Environments ........................................ 27 

The Built Environment ..................................................................................................... 29 

Grantham’s Historic Environment .................................................................................... 30 

Sustainable Transport in Grantham ................................................................................. 30 

Town Centres .................................................................................................................. 31 

Infrastructure and Developer Contributions ..................................................................... 31 

Protecting Existing Community Facilities and Providing New Facilities ............................ 31 

Other Planning Policies ................................................................................................... 32 

Section 5: Conclusion ......................................................................................................... 33 

 

 

 

45



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

iii 
 

Figures 
 

Figure 1: District Profile. ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Figure 2: South Kesteven in Geographical Context ........................................................................ 4 

Figure 3: South Kesteven Total Population Estimates ................................................................... 5 

Figure 4: Neighbourhood Plan Map .................................................................................................. 9 

Figure 5: Completion Trends in Market Towns  ............................................................................ 15 

Figure 6:Completion Trends in Villages and Other Settlements ................................................. 16 

 

Tables  
 

Table 1: Local Plan key milestones and timescales .............................................................. 6 

Table 2: Supplementary Planning Documents ...................................................................... 7 

Table 3: Designation Neighbourhood Plan Areas Status ....................................................... 8 

Table 4: Gross Dwelling Completions ................................................................................. 12 

Table 5: Net Housing Delivery from 1st April 2011 to 1st April 2021 .................................... 12 

Table 6: Completion by Settlement Designation (2020/21) .................................................. 13 

Table 7: Annual Housing Completions by Location and total percentage completed by 

settlement ........................................................................................................................... 15 

Table 8: Housing Allocations against number of commitments and completions ................. 18 

Table 9: Affordable Housing Completions by Tenure and Locations ................................... 19 

Table 10: Annual Affordable Housing Completions (2011-2022) ......................................... 19 

Table 11: 5 Year Housing Land Supply ............................................................................... 20 

Table 12: 5 Year Housing Land Supply Calculation ............................................................ 20 

Table 13: Number of Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Individuals/Groups registered by 

base period ......................................................................................................................... 21 

Table 14: Number Individuals/Groups on the Register per base period, against the number 

of beds required .................................................................................................................. 22 

Table 15: Base Period against permissions required .......................................................... 22 

Table 16: SHMA Recommended Housing Types ................................................................ 24 

Table 17: Dwelling Completions by Bedroom Size .............................................................. 24 

Table 18: Dwelling Completions by House Type ................................................................. 24 

Table 19: Cumulative Completed Gypsy and Traveller and Travelling Showpeople 

pitches/plots ........................................................................................................................ 25 

Table 20:New employment on Policy E1, E2 and E3 committed or completed by use class 26 

Table 21: Nature Sites ........................................................................................................ 28 

 

Appendices 
 

Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework. 

Appendix 2: Glossary.

46



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

1 
 

Section 1: Introduction 
 

Overview 
 

1.1 This is the second Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) of South Kesteven District 

Council’s since the adoption of the Local Plan (2011-2036) in January 2020. It provides 

information on the progression of preparing Planning Policy documents and the 

performance monitoring information for the period 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022.  

 

1.2 The AMR is the main mechanism for assessing the performance and progress of the 

Local Plan. Review and monitoring are key aspects of the Local Plan process and 

should be undertaken on a continuous basis. Reporting the outcome of this monitoring 

provides an effective mechanism for assessing the overall performance of the Planning 

Policy Framework, and ensures that the findings of the monitoring are used directly in 

review of policy when necessary.  

 
 

Requirements of the Authority Monitoring Report 
 

1.3 South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) is required, by the Localism Act 2011 to 

produce and publish an AMR annually. The general requirements of what must be 

covered by the AMR are set out in Regulation 34 of The Town and Country Planning 

(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. These include:  

 

• Assessing progress of any Local Plan and supplementary planning documents 

against the timetable and milestones set out in the Local Development Scheme 

(LDS).  

• Assessing the extent to which Local Plan policies are being implemented  

• Number of completed dwellings, including affordable completions 

• Details and progress of Neighbourhood Plans being prepared 

• Information relating to Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) receipts and 

expenditure, where CIL charge has been introduced and; 

• Details information relating to co-operation under the Duty to Co-operate 

(Section 33A).  

 

 

 

47

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26202


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

2 
 

Content  

 

1.4 The AMR is divided into four sections: Introduction, Profile of South Kesteven, AMR 

Requirements, and the Local Plan Monitoring Indicators.  

 

1.5 Section 2 presents contextual information on the profile of South Kesteven.  Section 3 

sets out the requirements of the AMR including information on the Review of the Local 

Plan, Duty to Cooperate, Neighbourhood Planning, and Brownfield Register. Section 

4 provides context information and sets out assessment of the monitoring information 

for each of the Monitoring Indicators set out in the Monitoring and Implementation 

Appendix of the Local Plan.  

 

1.6 Cross reference between the Monitoring implementation framework and the report can 

be found in Appendix 1 which highlights where the information for each indicator can 

be found in the report.  

 

1.7 A Glossary has been included (Appendix 2) to provide a brief explanation of the main 

technical terms within the report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26204
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26204


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

3 
 

Section 2: South Kesteven Profile  
 

Overall Context 
 

 

Figure 1: District Profile (Nomis Official Labour Market Statistics)  - figure taken from the Local Plan (adopted 
January 2020).  

 

2.1 A detailed portrait of South Kesteven including data on population, households, economy, 
and education can also be found at District Area Profiles published by the Lincolnshire 
Research Observatory. 
 

49

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/
http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/area-profiles.aspx
http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/area-profiles.aspx


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

4 
 

Location 
 

2.2 South Kesteven is one of seven districts located in Lincolnshire. It is situated in the 
southwest corner of Lincolnshire and covers an area of 365 square miles. The district 
includes the four market towns Grantham, Stamford, Bourne, and the Deepings. There are 
15 larger villages (as identified in the adopted Local Plan), and many smaller villages, and 
hamlets.  
 

2.3 The main concentration of residents are located in Grantham, with an estimated population 
of over 49,998. As a growth point, Grantham has historically had strategic importance due 
to its location on the River Witham, Great North Road, and rail links.  

 

Figure 2: South Kesteven in Geographical Context 

50



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

 

5 
 

Population  
 

2.4 There is an estimated population of 143,400 in South Kesteven, of this 48% are male, and 52% are female according to the Office of National 
Statistics population 2021 Census. It is estimated that by the end of the Local Plan period (2036) the population of South Kesteven will be 
158,647.  

Figure 3: South Kesteven Total Population Estimates (Source: Office for National Statistics)

 
 
South 
Kesteven 

 
2011 
Census 

2012 
mid-
year 
estimate 

2013 
mid-
year 
estimate 

2014 
mid-
year 
estimate 

2015 mid-
year 
estimates 

2016 mid- 
year 
estimates 

2017 mid-
year 
estimates 

2018 mid- 
year 
estimates 

2019 mid-
year 
estimates 

2020 mid-
year 
estimates 

2021 
Census 
(rounded 
estimate) 

% 
change 
2011-
2021 

% 
change 
2020-
2021 

134,100 135,200 136,600 138,300 139,400 140,900 141,662 141,853 142,424 143,225 143,400 +6.9% +0.12% 

51



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

6 
 

Section 3: Authority Monitoring Report Local Planning Regulations  
 

Local Development Scheme 
 

3.1 This section considers whether the timetable and milestones of the preparation of 
documents listed in the Local Development Scheme (LDS) is being met, as required by 
Section 34(1) of the 2012 Regulation. The AMR covers the period 1st April 2021 to 31st 
March 2022 and the information below reflects this monitoring period. However, up to date 
progress on the preparation of the Local Plan Review can be found on the Councils 
website here.   
 

3.2 The LDS is a project plan to inform the community and others what strategic planning 
documents are being prepared over the next three years. It identifies key milestones in 
their preparation, including the stages where documents will be made available for 
consultation. The LDS was most recently updated in October 2022. The 2022 LDS sets 
out the timetable for any Development Plan Document (DPD) to be prepared for the period 
2020-2023.  

 

Local Plan 

3.3 The Council is reviewing the Local Plan adopted in January 2020. The Inspector’s final 
report on the current Local Plan (2011-2036) commits the Council to undertake an early 
review of the Local Plan, with submission by the end of December 2023. The review 
process started in April 2020.  
 

3.4 The Issues and Options consultation ran for 6 weeks between 12th October and 23rd 
November 2020. It was the first opportunity for the local community to become involved in 
the preparation of the review of the Local Plan as it set out the scope of the review and 
key issues and options to be considered within the review. Alongside the Issues and 
Options consultation, a Call for Sites was launched to establish what land is available for 
development within the District. This process closed in September 2022.   

 
3.5 Key milestones and timescales of the Local Plan preparation can be seen in Table 1 below. 

The table shows the stages that, at the end of the monitoring period, had been completed 
and those that were still left to complete. The previous LDS was approved at the start of 
the Local Plan review in August 2020. Since that decision there have been several factors 
delaying the process, the LDS was updated in October 2022 to reflect this. The draft local 
plan consultation is expected to commence in February 2023.  
 

Table 1: Local Plan key milestones and timescales 

LP Review Stage  Proposed Date Actual Progress 

Commencement of Document reparation April 2020 Completed: April 2020 

Issues and Options + Call for Sites 
Consultation (Regulation 18) 

October 2020 Completed: 12th October 
– 23rd November 2020. 

Draft Consultation on Local Plan Review 
(Regulation 18) 

February/ March 
2023  

 

Pre Submission Consultation (Regulation 19 September/ 
October 2023 

 

Submission to the Secretary of State 
(Regulation 22) 

March 2024   

Public Examination (Regulation 24) March/April 2024 
– March 2025 

 

52

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15133
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15133
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15133


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

7 
 

Inspector's Report (Regulation 25) 
 

March 2025  

Adoption (Regulation 25) 
 

April 2025  

 

Other Local Development Documents 
 

3.6 The AMR should identify any Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) that have been 
adopted in the relevant monitoring period. Table 2 shows the two new SPD documents 
below were adopted during the monitoring period.  
 

Table 2: Supplementary Planning Documents 

 
 

Statement of Community Involvement 

 

3.7 The Council has reviewed and updated the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
which was adopted during this AMR period, on 14th October 2021.The SCI outlines how 
organisations and individuals can be involved in both the plan making process and 
consideration of planning applications. The document sets out the standards, 
methodology, and arrangements on how the Council will consult and report back to those 
engaged in the process.  
 

3.8 The review and update included a number of significant legislative and regulatory changes 
to the planning system which have adjusted the publicity and consultation requirements 
placed upon local authorities. There has also been the introduction of the Covid-19 
Regulations (Planning Update), which has made various changes to how planning 
consultations must be conducted in light of the coronavirus pandemic.  

 

Adopted Development Plan Documents at Time of Publication of AMR  

 

Local Plan 2011-2036 

 

3.9 The Local Plan (2011-2036) was adopted January 2020. This document sets out the 
vision, objectives, spatial strategy, policies for development and allocated sites for 
development in South Kesteven up to 2036. It applies to the whole administrative area of 
SKDC.  

 

Other Plans: Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 

 
3.10 Lincolnshire County Council are responsible for the production, monitoring and review of 

the Minerals and Waste Local Plan (LMWLP). The LMWLP is made up of two parts and 
sets out the key principles to guide future winning and working or minerals, form of waste 
management, development criteria, specific proposals, and policies for the provision of 
land for minerals and waste development in the county up to 2031.  

 

Document  Adoption date 

Rutland and South Kesteven Design Guidelines November 2021 

Rectory Farm SPD November 2021 

53

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=14095
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-planning-update
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-planning-update
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=14904
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/directory-record/61697/minerals-and-waste-local-plan-core-strategy-and-development-management-policies


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

8 
 

Neighbourhood Planning 
 

3.11 Neighbourhood planning provides communities with the ability to directly shape their local 
area and the development within it. Neighbourhood plans are led by a qualifying body such 
as a Parish or Town Council or a Neighbourhood Forum. The plans contain a vision, aims, 
proposals and planning policies for improving and conserving the areas.  

 
3.12 Following the introduction of Neighbourhood Planning with the Localism Act 2011 and the 

Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, 23 Neighbourhood Areas have been 
designated in South Kesteven.  

 
3.13 During this monitoring period, two Neighbourhood Plans were formally adopted (Old 

Somerby and The Deepings).   
 

3.14 Table 3 below, shows the latest position for Neighbourhood Planning in South Kesteven, 
this information is based on the most up to data information available and therefore 
includes information which occurred after 31st March 2022.  

 

Table 3: Designation Neighbourhood Plan Areas Status 

Area Date of Regulation Status 

Barrowby 12/06/2017 Area Designated 

Baston 26/06/2013 Area Designated 

Bourne 23/06/2015 Area Designated 

Carlby 23/09/2016 Adopted (11/03/2019) 

Carlton Scroop and Normanton 13/10/2016 Area Designated 

Castle Bytham 04/10/2019 Area Designated 

Claypole 20/03/2014 Area Designated 

Colsterworth and District 15/02/2013 Adopted (05/09/2017) 

Corby Glen 24/01/2017 Area Designated 

Foston 15/02/2013 Adopted (05/06/2017) 

Hough on the Hill 08/01/2012 Adopted (03/07/2015) 

Long Bennington 06/11/2012 Adopted (19/07/2017) 

Old Somerby 15/08/2016 Adopted (29/06/2021) 

Pointon and Sempringham 19/12/2016 Area Designated 

Rippingale (formally Aveland) 23/09/2016 Area Designated 

Ropsley and District 13/10/2016 Adopted (29/06/2021) 

Skillington 18/06/2015 Adopted (05/09/2017) 

Stamford 30/03/2016 Adopted (25/07/2022) 

Stubton 15/02/2013 Adopted (03/07/2015) 

The Deepings 31/03/2016 Adopted (29/06/2021) 

Thurlby 18/09/2014 Adopted (11/03/2019) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

9 
 

 

Figure 4: Neighbourhood Plan Map 

3.15 You can view more information on the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans on the 
neighbourhood planning webpage on the Council’s website here.  

55

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8161


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

10 
 

Duty to Cooperate 
 

3.16 The Duty to Cooperate, introduced through the Localism Act requires local planning 
authorities to work with other neighbouring authorities and other prescribed bodies on 
preparing development plan documents.  
 

3.17 South Kesteven, has been involved in and has undertaken a range of strategic planning 
matters, including meetings with neighbouring authorities adjoining the boundary of the 
district and within the Peterborough sub-regional Housing Market Area (HMA).  

 
3.18 Key strategic matters include:  

 

• Stamford North, a cross boundary Local Plan allocation which extends into 
Rutland County. The development is anticipated to deliver around 1,300 homes 
within South Kesteven as well as key infrastructure, services and facilities. The 
Local Plan policy make reference to the site extending into Quarry Farm, 
Rutland with an additional capacity of 650 dwellings. SKDC has been liaising 
with Rutland County Council on the delivery of Stamford North. In September 
2021, the draft Rutland Local Plan was withdrawn. However, the Councils and 
stakeholders continue to work collaboratively on the future of Stamford North.  

• Assessing the accommodation needs of Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling 
Showpeople. The Council has commissioned a study to inform the emerging 
Local Plan. The study will assess need and identify the accommodation 
requirements of the Gypsy, Traveller, and Travelling Showpeople communities. 
This includes liaising with neighbouring authorities due to the transient nature 
of the community.  

• The Council has commissioned a Local  Housing Needs Assessment, a key 
part of which includes liaising with neighbouring authorities and those with in 
the Housing Market Area. 

• The Council has commissioned an Employment Land Review, a key part of 
which includes liaising with neighbouring and other authorities within the area. 

• The Council also worked collaboratively with Rutland County Council and other 
statutory bodies on the development of the Design Guidelines for Rutland and 
South Kesteven Supplementary Planning Document (adopted November 
2021).  

• The Council has consulted a range of stakeholders which includes 
neighbouring authorities and other statutory bodies on the Issues and Options 
consultation report.  

• The Council has signed a SoCG with regard to the Central Lincolnshire Local 
Plan 

• The Council has signed a SoCG with regard to the Bassetlaw Local Plan. 
 

3.19 Throughout, the review of the Local Plan, the Council will continue to engage in the context 
of the Duty to Cooperate with neighbouring authorities and other organisations, some of 
the key partners are: Local Authorities within the sub-regional Peterborough HMA, 
Environment Agency, Historic England, Natural England, Highways England, Network 
Rail, Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board, NHS Local Area Team, National Grid UK, 
Greater Lincolnshire Nature Partnership, Anglian Water, Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust, 
Severn Trent Water. 
 

3.20 The Council intends to submit the Local Plan by the end of March 2024, and this will be 
accompanied by a full Duty to Cooperate Statement. 

 

56

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15311
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=15311


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

11 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

3.21 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) legislation was introduced in April 2010 and this 
allows local authorities to levy a charge to raise contributions from developers to help pay 
for strategic infrastructure that is needed as a result of development. It is intended to 
supplement other funding streams to ensure that new development infrastructure can be 
provided to support local growth and to give councils and communities more choice and 
flexibility in how they fund infrastructure.  
 

3.22 A decision on the introduction of CIL has not been made. The Council intends to update 
the current Planning Obligations Development Plan Document (June 2012) once the 
Government’s decision on a new national Infrastructure Levy has been published.  

 

Brownfield Register 
 

3.23 The Council is required to prepare and publish annually a Brownfield Land Register. This 
provides information on brownfield (previously developed) land that is suitable for housing. 
The inclusion of a site on the Brownfield Land Register is required to meet certain 
assessment criteria set out in Regulations.  
 

3.24 The Register can consist of two parts; 
 

• Part 1 is a list of all Brownfield sites considered to be appropriate for residential 
development  

• Part 2 is made up of sites which have been taken forward from Part 1 of the 
Register and given Planning Permission in Principle  

 
3.25 There are 12 sites on Part 1 of the Register, there are currently no sites in Part 2 of the 

register.  
 

Implementation of Policy 

 

3.26 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012 
(Regulation 34) require the AMR to identify any policies in a Local Plan that are not being 
implemented and explain the reasons why. There are no policies in the current Local Plan 
that are not being implemented. All policies remain part of the Development Plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=24316&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=13215


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

12 
 

Section 4: Monitoring  
 

Housing in South Kesteven  
 

4.1 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) update (2017) established an 
Objectively Assessed Need (OAN) for South Kesteven of 16,125 dwellings from 2011 to 
2036, which equates to 650 new homes (uplifted from 625 from 2016 per annum).  
 

4.2 A total of 490 dwellings were completed within the monitoring period (with a net completion 
figure of 485 dwellings).  

 
Table 4: Gross Dwelling Completions 

Gross dwelling completions 2021/22 

Gross completions 490 

Demolitions and losses to other uses -5 

Net dwelling completions 485 

 

 
4.3 The net cumulative and annual completions since 2011/12 monitoring period have been 

set out in Table 5. 
 

Table 5: Net Housing Delivery from 1st April 2011 to 1st April 2021 

Year Annual Target Units Delivered Cumulative total since 
start of the plan period 

2011/12 625 494 494 

2012/13 625 497 991 

2013/14 625 541 1532 

2014/15 625 652 2184 

2015/16 625 495 2679 

2016/17 650 454 3133 

2017/18 650 428 3561 

2018/19 650 676 4237 

2019/20 650 729 4966 

2020/21 650 446 5412 

2021/22 650 485 5897 

Survey Year (2012-2016) 269 6166 

District Total 6166  

 

4.4 A physical survey was undertaken in 2015/16 of all outstanding commitments. This was 
considered necessary as a number of sites (particularly small sites) were known to have 
been completed but still featured on the commitment list as sites under construction but 
not completed. As a result of the survey the sites are now counted as completions (Survey 
Year (2012-2016)). However, the actual year of completion cannot be confirmed. 

 

 

 

58



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

13 
 

Table 6: Completion by Settlement Designation (2020/21) 

Settlement Settlement Designation 2021/2022 

Aisby Smaller Village 0 

Allington  Smaller Village 2 

Ancaster Larger Village 0 

Aslackby And Laughton Smaller Village 2 (-1) 

Barholm and Stowe Smaller Village 4 

Barkston Larger Village 3 

Barrowby Larger Village 2 

Baston Larger Village 1 

Belton and Manthorpe Smaller Village 0 

Billingborough Larger Village 1 

Bitchfield and Bassingthorpe Countryside 0 

Boothby Pagnell Smaller Village 0 

Bourne Market Town 124 

Brandon Countryside 1 

Braceborough Smaller Village 0 

Burton Coggles Smaller Village 0 

Careby Aunby and Holywell Countryside 0 

Carlby Smaller Village 1 

Carlton Scroop Smaller Village 0 

Castle Bytham Smaller Village 4 

Caythorpe and Frieston Larger Village 1 

Claypole Smaller Village 0 

Colsterworth Larger Village 0 

Corby Glen Larger Village 0 

Deeping St. James Market Town 74 

Denton Smaller Village 0 

Dowsby Smaller Village 0 

Dry Doddington Smaller Village 0 

Dunsby Smaller Village 1 

Dyke Smaller Village 1 

Easton Countryside (-1) 

Edenham Smaller Village 0 

Folkingham Smaller Village 1 

Foston Smaller Village 0 

Frognall Smaller Village 0 

Fulbeck Smaller Village 2 

Grantham Market Town 157(-1) 

Great Gonerby Larger Village 51 

Great Ponton Smaller Village 0 

Greatford Smaller Village 0 

Haconby Smaller Village 0 

Hanthorpe Smaller Village 0 

Harlaxton Larger Village 7 

Horbling Smaller Village 0 

59



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

14 
 

Hougham Smaller Village 0 

Hough-On-The-Hill Smaller Village 1 

Ingoldsby Smaller Village 0 

Irnham Smaller Village 0 

Kirby Underwood Smaller Village 0 

Langtoft Larger Village 0 

Lenton Smaller Village 0 

Lenton Keisby And Osgodby Smaller Village 0 

Little Bytham Smaller Village 0 

Long Bennington Larger Village 19 

Manthorpe Smaller Village 0 

Market Deeping Market Town 9 

Marston Smaller Village 1 

Morton Larger Village 2 

North Witham Smaller Village 0 

Oasby Smaller Village 1 

Old Somerby Smaller Village 0 

Pickworth Smaller Village 0 

Pointon And Sempringham Smaller Village 0 

Rippingale Smaller Village 0 

Ropsley Smaller Village 3 

Sedgebrook Smaller Village 0 

Skillington  Smaller Village 0 

South Witham Larger Village 0 

Stamford Market Town 10 (-1) 

Stoke Rochford Countryside (-1) 

Stubton Smaller Village 0 

Sudbrook Smaller Village 0 

Swayfield Smaller Village 2 

Swinstead Smaller Village 0 

Syston Smaller Village 0 

Tallington Smaller Village 0 

Thurlby and Northorpe Larger Village 1 

Toft Smaller Village 0 

Twenty Smaller Village 1 

Uffington  Smaller Village 0 

Welby Smaller Village 0 

West Deeping Smaller Village 0 

Westborough And Dry Doddington Smaller Village 0 

Witham on the Hill Smaller Village 0 

Woolsthorpe By Belvoir Smaller Village 0 

Woolsthorpe By Colsterworth Smaller Village 0 

Total  485 

 

60



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

15 
 

Number and Percentage of dwellings completed by location in accordance with Policy SP2. 

(Policy SP1, Policy SP2, Policy H1) 

 

 

Table 7: Annual Housing Completions by Location and total percentage completed by settlement  

 

 

 

 

Figure 5: Completion Trends in Market Towns (not including Survey Year (2012-16)) 

Settlement 2
0
1
1

/1
2

 

2
0
1
2

/1
3

 

2
0
1
3

/1
4

 

2
0
1
4

/1
5

 

2
0
1
5

/1
6

 

2
0
1
6

/1
7

 

2
0
1
7

/1
8

 

2
0
1
8

/1
9

 

S
u

rv
e
y
 Y

e
a

r 

(2
0
1
2
-1

6
) 

2
0
1
9

/2
0

 

2
0

2
0

/2
1
 

2
0

2
1

/2
2
 

T
o

ta
l 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 

s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 
 

Grantham 145 107 221 224 185 72 150 217 58 230 123 156 30.62% 

Stamford 78 82 41 38 32 141 71 161 27 187 74 9 15.26% 

Bourne 129 154 149 216 149 136 121 240 45 200 89 124 28.41% 

The Deepings 60 82 42 131 68 40 14 15 29 37 85 83 11.13% 

Larger villages 56 55 58 32 55 44 41 29 68 61 25 88 9.93% 

Smaller villages  26 17 30 11 6 21 31 14 42 12 47 26 4.59% 

Other Settlements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3 -1 0.06% 

District Total  494 497 541 652 495 454 428 676 269 729 446 485 100% 

61



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

16 
 

 

 

Figure 6:Completion Trends in Villages and Other Settlements (not including Survey Year (2012-16)) 

Please note other settlements are those not listed in Policy SP2 of the Local Plan (2011-2036) – data only available 

since 2019.20.  

 

 

4.5 During this monitoring period completions in the four main towns accounted for 77% of all 
completions with completions in Grantham accounting for 32% of urban completions. 
 

4.6 Please note the other settlements category was included as a category this monitoring 
year to reflect settlement designations in Policy SP2 – Settlement Hierarchy. Previously, 
all settlements which were not a Market Town or Local Service Centre (now known as 
Larger Village) were included into the category of Smaller Villages.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

17 
 

 
 

Lapsed Sites (Policy H1) 

 

4.7 Sites are removed from a list of housing commitments when the planning application has 
expired (usually three years from the decision date) without implementation, 
commencement, or any additional planning permission. This year, 2 large sites (of 10 or 
more dwellings) and 17 small site (1-9 dwellings) permissions were non-implemented and 
expired by 31st March 2022. 
 

Year Lapsed Sites 

Small Sites Large Sites 

2020/21 14 0 

2021/22 17 2 

 
 
 

Loss of Housing (Policy H1) 

 

4.8 The total number of demolitions or loss of residential housing during this AMR is 5 which 
has been calculated against the total completions. To avoid double counting sites where 
demolitions are part of a larger site demolitions are deducted and not accounted for. 
Similarly, any replacement dwellings have not been counted.   
 

4.9 There was a loss of three residential units to other use classes during this AMR, all 
applications for change of use from residential to office. The remaining two units were due 
to conversions from two dwellings into one.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

18 
 

Housing Allocation Completions 

 

Table 8: Housing Allocations against number of commitments and completions 

P
o

li
c

y
 C

o
d

e
 

S
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 

L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

s
 

GR3-H1 Grantham 
 

Spitalgate Heath – Garden Village 0 0 

GR3-H2 Grantham Rectory Farm (Phase 2 North West Quadrant) 0 0 

GR3-H3 Grantham Rectory Farm (Phase 3 North West Quadrant) 0 0 

GR3-H4 Grantham 
 

Prince William of Gloucester Barracks 0 0 

STM1-
H1 

Stamford Stamford North 0 0 

STM1-
H2 

Stamford Stamford East 200 0 

DEP1-
H1 

The Deepings Towngate West 0 0 

DEP1-
H2 

The Deepings Land off Linchfield Road 0 0 

BRN1-
H1 

Bourne  Manning Road 121 0 

BRN1 Bourne Bourne Neighbourhood Planning Group 0 0 

LV-H1 Ancaster 
 

Wilsford Lane (North) 96 0 

LV-H2 Ancaster 
 

Wilsford Lane (South) 0 0 

LV-H3 Barrowby 
 

Low Road 49 0 

LV-H4 Colsterworth 
 

Bourne Road 70 0 

LV-H5 Corby Glen 
 

Swinstead Road/ Bourne Road 265 0 

LV-H6 Great Gonerby 
 

Easthorpe Road 46 46 

LV-H7 Long Bennington 
 

Main Road (South) 50 0 

LV-H8 Long Bennington 
 

Main Road (North) 43 0 

LV-H9 Morton 
 

Folkingham Road 71 0 

LV-H10 South Witham 
 

Thistleton Lane and Mill Lane 0 0 

LV-H11 South Witham 
 

Land North of High Street 0 0 

LV-H12 Thurlby Part of Elm Farm Yard 0 0 

    *Commitments include Outline and/ or Reserved Matters approvals for all or part of the site.  

64



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

19 
 

Affordable Housing Contributions (Policy H2) 

 

4.10 The Local Plan Policy H2 requires that all sites of 11 or more dwellings (or greater than 
1000m2 gross floorspace) should make provision for affordable housing and, where this 
is provided on site, up to 30% of total capacity of the scheme should be affordable or 20% 
in the urban area of Grantham.  
 

4.11 Between 1st April 2021 and 31st March 2022 there were 116 affordable housing 
completions. All affordable dwelling completions accounted for 23.9% of the total number 
of housing completions during the AMR year, 60% of affordable completions were in the 
market towns and 40% in Large Villages. All completed units were on sites that delivered 
at least 30% affordable housing. Completions in Grantham delivered the previous 35% 
target (reduced to 20% since the adoption of the Local Plan) in the urban area of 
Grantham, one site in Grantham provided 100% affordable housing.   

 
 

Table 9: Affordable Housing Completions by Tenure and Locations  

Location 

S
o

c
ia

l 
R

e
n

t 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
  

R
e

n
t 

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
  

R
e

n
t 

S
h

a
re

d
  

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

D
is

c
o

u
n

te
d

  

O
p

e
n

 M
a

rk
e
t 

R
e

n
t 

to
 B

u
y
 

T
o

ta
l 

Grantham 3 17 8 9   37 

Stamford 2      2 

Bourne 7      7 

The Deepings  9  15   24 

Larger Villages  12  24  10 46 

Smaller Villages       0 

Total 12 38 8 48 0 10 116 

 

 

Table 10: Annual Affordable Housing Completions (2011-2022) 

Settlement 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

2
0
1

7
/1

8
 

2
0
1

8
/1

9
 

2
0
1

9
/2

0
 

2
0
2

0
/2

1
 

2
0
2

1
/2

2
 

Grantham  9 0 0 27 78 8 53 0 76 3 37 

Stamford  0 14 0 11 20 14 51 23 58 28 2 

Bourne  27 12 25 24 17 0 30 36 22 0 7 

The Deepings  65 5 29 23 30 0 0 0 0 25 24 

Larger villages  16 25 27 4 15 6 0 12 2 0 46 

Smaller villages   0 0 10 0 0 0 5 7 0 0 0 

District Total   117 56 91 89 160 28 139 78 158 56 116 

65



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

20 
 

 Housing Land Supply 

 

4.12 The National Planning Policy Framework requires Local Planning Authorities to identity a 
five-year supply of deliverable sites available for housing.  
 

4.13 The five year housing land supply assessment for 2021-2026 was confirmed through an 
Annual Position Statement. The Inspector’s report confirmed that the Council has a 
housing land supply equivalent to 5.22 years’ supply of deliverable sites for one year i.e., 
until 31st October 2022. This is made up of the following: 

 

Table 11: 5 Year Housing Land Supply 

Supply Total 

Small Sites with planning permission, including under construction 613 

Windfall Allowance expected to contribute to the supply in later years (2023/24- 
2025/26) 

90 

Large sites with Planning Permission not under-construction 248 

Large Sites Under-construction 827 

Sustainable Urban Extensions with Planning Permission 628 

Local Plan Allocations (Deliverable Sites) 1549 

Council Capital Programme 46 

Total  4001 

 

4.14 The Liverpool Method was used to calculate the 5 year supply to meet the shortfall of 694 
dwellings over the remainder of the plan period. Furthermore, a 10% buffer was applied to 
the 5 year requirement.  
 

4.15 Table 12 sets out the 5 year land supply using the Liverpool Method, and a 10% buffer.  
 

 
 

Table 12: 5 Year Housing Land Supply Calculation 

 Housing Requirement for development plan period 2011 - 2036 

   Number of Dwellings 

a 2011-2036 16125 

b Net additions 2011-2036 568 

c Shortfall of housing 2011-2019 694 

d Requirement for 16 years 2020-2036 (650 * 16) plus shortfall 10,444 

e Requirement for 5 years 2020-2025 (including shortfall ((d/16)*5) 3481 

f 10% Buffer required 348 

g Total requirement, including shortfall, plus buffer 3829 

h Expected supply of deliverable sites to 2025 4001 

j Surplus over requirement (h-g) 172 

k Number of years supply (h/g)*5 5.22 

 

4.16 A subsequent Annual Position Statement was submitted in July 2022, a decision was 
made in October 2022 and replaces this position. 

 
4.17 Further information on the Annual Position Statement can be found at the following link 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk/APS  

66

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/APS


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

21 
 

Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Register (Policy H3) 

 

4.18 From April 2016, the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended by the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016) places a number of obligations on all relevant authorities. 
This includes keeping a register of all individuals and associations of individuals who wish 
to acquire serviced plots of land to build their own homes in the authority’s area. Local 
Authorities are to have regard to those registers in carrying out their planning, housing, 
land disposal and regeneration functions.  
 

4.19 Local Authorities are also required to grant permissions for sufficient plots of land to meet 
the demand as demonstrated by the Register arising in each base period. The authority 
has three years from the end of each base period within which to grant permissions for the 
equivalent number of plots suitable for self-build and custom housebuilding as there are 
entries for that base period. 

 
4.20 The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Register is split into the relevant ‘base periods’. 

Base Period 1 ran April 2016 – 30th October 2016, every subsequent base period is from 
31st October to 30th October. The most recent base period ran from 31st October 2020 to 
30th October 2021 inclusive.  

 
4.21 Table 13 below sets out the total number of individuals and groups registered on the Self-

build and Custom Housebuilding Register, per base period as at 30th October 2021. 182 
entries are for individuals, there are also 2 groups on the Register.   

 

Table 13: Number of Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Individuals/Groups registered by base period 

 
Base Period 

Number of 
individuals on 
register 

Number of 
groups on 
register 

Total 
individuals 
within 
Groups 

April 2016 - 30th October 2016 17 0 0 

31st October 2016- 30 October 2017 39 0 0 

31st October 2017 – 30th October 2018  32 0 0 

31st October 2018 – 30th October 2019 22 0 0 

31st October 2019 – 30th October 2020 25 1 5 

31st October 2020 – 30th October 2021 47 1 3 

Total  182 2 8 

 

4.22 All entries on the Register entered interests in the number of bedrooms. Table 14 sets out 
the number of people on the Register per base period, against the number of beds which 
would be required in a custom/self build home. The overall preferred preference is 4 
bedroomed homes, 19 entries were undecided.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

67



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

22 
 

 

Table 14: Number Individuals/Groups on the Register per base period, against the number of beds required 

  Number of Bedrooms 

Base Period Number on 
register 

1 2 3 4 5 Undecided 

April 2016 - 30th October 2016 17 0 2 4 9 1 1 

31st October 2016- 30 October 
2017 

39 1 3 13 14 6 2 

31st October 2017 – 30th October 
2018  

32 0 0 9 15 4 4 

31st October 2018 – 30th October 
2019 

22 1 2 4 9 3 3 

31st October 2019 – 30th October 
2020 

25 0 3 6 9 4 4 

31st October 2020 – 30th October 
2021 

47 0 3 9 17 13 5 

Total  182 2 13 45 73 31 19 

 

 

4.23 Section 2A of the Housing and Planning Act 2015 requires Local Authorities to grant 
planning permission for enough serviced plots of land for self-build and custom 
housebuilding in each base period. The obligation to give suitable development permission 
is determined by reference to individual base periods, the most recent ran from 31st 
October 2018- 30th October 2021 inclusive.  
 

4.24 Since 31st October 2021, 7 permissions specifically indicating as self-build plots have been 
granted permission, as part of one larger scheme, against the requirement of 190.  

 
 
 

Table 15: Base Period against permissions required 

Base Period Number of 
individuals/groups 
on register 

3 year period 
within which the 
requirement must 
be met 

Permissions 
granted to meet 
the requirements* 

April 2016 - 30th 
October 2016 

17 31st October 2016 – 
30th October 2019 

 

31st October 2016- 
30 October 2017 

39 31st October 2017 – 
30th October 2020 

6 

31st October 2017 – 
30th October 2018  

32 31st October 2018 – 
30th October 2021 

1 

31st October 2018 – 
30th October 2019 

22 31st October 2019 – 
30th October 2022 

 

31st October 2019 – 
30th October 2020 

25 (& 1 group (5 
individuals)) 

31st October 2020 – 
30th October 2023 

 

31st October 2020 – 
30th October 2021 

47 (&1 group (3 
individuals) 

31st October 2021 – 
30th October 2024 

 

Total  190  7 
Details on permission granted have been attained through the latest available monitoring data.  

 

68



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

23 
 

4.25 Please note monitoring is not currently available for single plots which may have come 
forward as custom/self build housing within this base period.  
 

4.26 Taking into account planning permissions specifically indicating Self-build and Custom 
Housebuilding the Council does not at present have enough sustainable permissions in 
respect of plots to meet the demand for Self-build and Custom housing arising over the 
first or second base periods. 
 

4.27 Policy H3 Self and Custom Build requires the provision of 2% of Self-Build and Custom 
housing on large housing schemes of 400 or more units. No sites meeting this criteria were 
approved during this AMR period.  
 

4.28 The Council will continue to monitor the number self-build and custom housing, however 
it must be considered that not all self-build and custom housing will be identified as such 
on planning applications.  

 
4.29 The Register is publicised on the Council’s website, individuals or groups can apply to be 

included on the Register here.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=10296


South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

24 
 

Meeting all Housing Needs (Policy H4) 

 

4.30 The National Planning Policy Framework requires an appropriate mix of house types to be 
provided on development sites taking account of the findings of the Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment (SHMA). The SHMA (2014) recommends that housing provision in 
South Kesteven should be monitored against the broad mix of market and affordable 
provision over the period to 2036 as shown in Table 16 below.  
 
 
 

Table 16: SHMA Recommended Housing Types 

 Number of Bedrooms 

Type 1 2 3 4+ 

Market 0-5% 30-35% 45-50% 15-20% 

Affordable 20-25% 40-45% 23-30% 5-10% 

 

4.31 Table 17 indicates that a mix of house types have been provided in the district this AMR. 
3 bedroomed homes are the most prominent size of housing delivered in the district. Table 
18 below, shows that a greater value of Semi-detached and Detached homes were 
delivered this AMR.  
 
 
 

Table 17: Dwelling Completions by Bedroom Size 

 Market Affordable Total 

Size of 
Housing 

Number % Number % Number % 

1 bedroom 31 8.40% 18 15.51% 49 10.1% 

2 bedroom 61 16.53% 56 48.27% 117 24.12% 

3 bedroom 157 42.55% 40 34.5% 197 40.62% 

4+ Bedroom 120 32.52% 2 1.72% 122 25.16% 

Total 369 100.00% 116 100.00% 485 100.00% 

% in tenure % % 100.00% 

 

Table 18: Dwelling Completions by House Type 

    

 

 

 

 

 House Type 

Type Semi 
Detached 

Detached Terrace Flats/ 
Maisonettes 

Bungalow 

Market 131 152 24 60 2 

Affordable 71 1 12 15 17 

Total 202 153 36 75 19 

70



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

25 
 

Gypsies and Travellers (Policy H5) and Travelling Showpeople (Policy H6) 

 

4.32 In November 2015, SKDC and Rutland County Council commissioned an updated Gypsy 
and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA). The GTTA quantified the 
accommodation and housing related needs of Gypsies and Travellers (including Travelling 
Showpeople) for the period 2016-2036. For South Kesteven there is an identified need for 
32 Gypsy and Traveller residential pitches and 9 plots for Travelling Showpeople during 
the plan period (2016 to 2036).   
 

4.33 During this AMR, an additional 6 pitches and 6 transit pitches in Cold Harbour, Grantham, 
(refused in May 2019), were then allowed at appeal (November 2021). 

 
4.34 Table 19 shows the cumulative totals of Gypsy and Travellers and Travelling Showpeople 

completed pitches since 2011/12.  
 

 
 

Table 19: Cumulative Completed Gypsy and Traveller and Travelling Showpeople pitches/plots 

 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

2
0
1

3
/1

4
 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 

2
0
1

6
/1

7
 

2
0
1

7
/1

8
 

2
0
1

8
/1

9
 

2
0
1

9
/2

0
 

2
0
2

0
/2

1
 

2
0
2

1
/2

2
 

Gypsy and Travellers  

Permanent 
Planning 
Permission 

36 36 46 46 46 49 49 49 51 52 52 

Temporary 
Planning 
Permission 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Caravans 
on 
travellers 
own land 
‘tolerated’ 

Not 
Known 

Not 
Known 

Not 
Known 

Not 
Known 

Not 
Known 

Not 
Known 

3 3 3 3 3 

Travelling Showpeople   

Travelling 
Showpeople 
Plots 

13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 

 

      
4.35 SKDC has commissioned consultants to review the Gypsy and Traveller Study.  The 

evidence base will inform the review of the Local Plan by assessing the need and updating 
the requirement given the shortfall in provision through the current plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

71



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

26 
 

Economic Prosperity 
 

4.36 The Employment Land Study produced in 2015 provides information on projections over 
the Plan Period (2011-2036). As part of the Local Plan Review, the Employment Study is 
being reviewed, any further monitoring information will be published when available.  
 

4.37 The Local Plan includes a number of Strategic Employment Sites and Employment 
Allocations which are due to be delivered over the Plan period. The current status of the 
allocations can be found in Table 19.  

 

Employment Opportunity (Policy E1)/Strategic Employment Sites (Policy E2)/          

Employment Allocations (Policy E3) 

 

Table 20: New employment on Policy E1, E2 and E3 committed or completed by use class 

 
Policy Code 

 
New employment 
committed 

Amount of other 
Employment 

generating uses 
committed 

E1: Grantham Southern Gateway 
Employment Opportunity 

KING31 Commercial 
(OUT) (S17/1045) 
for B1, B2, B8 use 
comprising of 5,313 
sqm. 
 
Spitalgate Level 
General Industrial 
and Storage and 
distribution 
(S21/1057) (OUT) 
B2 – 43,200sqm. B8 
– 43,200sqm.  

Designer Outlet Village 
(S17/1262) Phase 1 -
20,479 sqm (GEA (A1, 
A3) Storage (1,267sqm) 
Phase 2 – 12,550sqm 
(GEA) (A1, A3) Storage 
(2,228sqm) hotel 
(s,778sqm).  

 
Policy Code 

 
New Employment committed or completed  
 

E2: ST-SE1 Exeter Fields, Empingham 
Road, Stamford 

No relevant applications 

E2: BO-SE1 Land South of Spalding 
Road, Bourne 

No relevant applications 

E2: DEP-SE1 Extension to Northfields 
Industrial Estate, Market Deeping 

No relevant applications 

E2: RBP-E1 Roseland Business Park 
 

Outline planning commitments (S18/2384, 
S18/2385, S18/2386, and S18/2387) for 
B1/B2/B8 use comprising a total of 27,336.6sqm 
additional industrial floor space to existing 
Roseland Business Park site. 

E3: ST-E1 Land East of Ryhall Road, 
Stamford 

No relevant applications 

E3: BO-E1 Adjacent to A151 Raymond 
Mays Ways, Bourne 

No relevant applications 

E3: B)-E2 Land North of Bourne Eau and 
East of Car Dyke, Bourne 

No relevant applications 

72



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

27 
 

E3: DEP1-E1 Land Fronting Peterborough 
Road, Market Deeping 

Outline planning commitment (S14/3585) for 
development use of B1/B2/B8 use comprising of 
10,000sqm.  

E3: GR-E1 Prince William of Gloucester 
Barracks, Grantham 

No relevant applications 

 

4.38 During this AMR period:  
 

Protection of Existing Employment Sites (Policy E4) 

• No developments were refused and then supported at appeal when citing Policy E4. 

• There was no loss from existing employment sites as defined in Policy E4. 
 

Expansion of Existing Businesses (Policy E5) 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy E5. 

• 2,814 square metres (gross new internal floorspace) of new employment land was 
permitted resulting in the expansion of existing buildings.  
 

Loss of Employment Land and Buildings to Non-Employment Uses (Policy E6) 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy E6.  
• 2 buildings were lost to non-employment uses.  

 

Rural Economy (Policy E7) 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy E7.   

 

Other Employment Proposals (Policy E8) 

• There were no developments refused and then supported at appeal relating to other 
employment proposals (Policy E8).  
 

Visitor Economy (Policy E9) 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy E9.  
 
 
 
 

Protecting and Enhancing the Natural and Built Environments 
 

Landscape Character (Policy EN1) 

 

4.39 The district can be divided into four National Landscape areas, and further subdivided into 
seven Landscape Areas, each with its own distinctive characteristics. Policy EN1 ensures 
that development is appropriate to the character and significant natural historic and cultural 
attributes and features of the landscape.  
 

4.40 During this AMR period, one application was dismissed at appeal when citing Policy EN1.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

28 
 

Protecting Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Policy EN2) 

 

4.41 South Kesteven has a variety of nature reserves and protected sites, and we want to 
minimise the impact of biodiversity and wildlife, to ensure there is no impact on nature 
consideration interests from developments.  
 

4.42 In South Kesteven, there has been no net loss of Local Sites. In total, there are 247 Local 
sites, of these 232 are Local Wildlife Sites and 15 are Local Geological Sites.  

 
 

4.43 All nature sites currently present within South Kesteven can be found in Table 20 below.  
 
 

Table 21: Nature Sites 

Designation Number of Sites 

Nature 2000 (Special Areas of Conservation) 2 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 27 

National Nature Reserves (NNRs) None 

Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) 232 

Sites of Nature Conservation Interests (SNCI) 64 

Local Geological Sites (LGS) 15 

Regionally Important Geological and 
Geomorphological sites (RIGs) 

4 

 

4.44 During this AMR, no planning applications were refused and supported at appeal when 
citing Policy EN2.  

 

Green Infrastructure (Policy EN3) 

 

4.45 The Council is working to ensure the promotion of green infrastructure, prioritising 
proposals that contribute to net gain and enhancement of green infrastructure. 
Developments should ensure that existing and new green infrastructure is considered and 
integrated. During this AMR, there were no developments refused and supported at appeal 
relating to Green Infrastructure networks (Policy EN3).  

 

Pollution Control (Policy EN4) 

 

4.46 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the need for local authorities to consider 
the impact of new development on noise, air, and light pollution, to ensure that new 
developments do not harm existing and future residents, or the natural environment. There 
were no developments refused and supported at appeal relating to Pollution Control 
(Policy EN4).  

 

Reducing the Risk of Flooding (Policy EN5) 

 

4.47 Development should be located in the lowest areas of flood risk, in accordance with the 
South Kesteven Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. During this AMR, one application was 
dismissed at appeal when citing Policy EN5, relating to the water environment and flood 

74



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

29 
 

risk management. Furthermore, no applications were approved contrary to Environment 
Agency advice on flooding and water quality ground.   

 

The Historic Environment (Policy EN6) 

 

4.48 The Council seeks to protect and enhance heritage assets and their setting in keeping with 
the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework. To date a number of conservation 
area appraisals have been produced and 47 conservation areas declared.  
 

4.49 The district has the following designated heritage assets.  
 

 

Conservation Areas 47 

Listed Buildings 2148 

Scheduled Monuments 95 

Historic Parks and Gardens 9  

 

4.50 During this AMR period, three applications were dismissed at appeal when citing Policy 
EN6.  

 

Protecting and Enhancing Grantham Canal (Policy EN7) 

 

4.51 The Local Plan requires future development proposals to both protect and enhance the 33 
mile long Grantham Canal that runs through the district. There were no developments 
refused and supported at appeal relating to the protection and enhancement of the 
Grantham Canal (Policy EN7).  
 
 

The Built Environment  
 

Promoting Good Quality Design (Policy DE1) 

 

4.52 The Council wants to ensure high quality design is achieved throughout the district, and 
plan positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all development. 
During this AMR period, four planning applications were supported at appeal (one 
application was refused based on the previous Development Plan (Core Strategy (2010)) 
but determined at appeal on the New Local Plan). 9 applications were dismissed at appeal 
when citing Policy DE1.   

 

Sustainable Building (Policy SB1) 

 

4.53 Planning plays a key role in delivering reductions to greenhouse gas emissions, minimising 
vulnerability, and providing resilience to climate change. The Local Plan expects 
development proposals to mitigate against and adapt to climate change, to comply with 
national and contribute to local targets on reducing carbon emissions and energy.  
 

4.54 There were no developments refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy SB1.  

75



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

30 
 

Open Space (Policy OS1) 

 

4.55 The Local Plan sets out the standards to be used to ensure the availability of adequate 
open space for all areas, to ensure adequate provision for each type of open space, based 
on existing and future needs.  
 

4.56 There were no developments refused and then supported at appeal when citing Policy 
OS1. 

 

Renewable Energy Generation 
 

Renewable Energy Generation (Policy RE1) 

 

4.57 The Council is the responsible local planning authority for renewable and low carbon 
development. Proposals for renewable energy generation will be supported subject to 
meeting criteria in Policy RE1 and the accompanying Renewable Energy Appendix to the 
Local Plan. During this AMR, there were no developments refused and supported at 
appeal relating to proposals for renewable energy (Policy EN7).  
 
 

Grantham’s Historic Environment 

 

Protecting and Enhancing the Setting of Belton House and Park (Policy GR1) 

 

4.58 Belton House and its Historic Park and Garden are nationally, and internationally 
significant heritage assets located in close proximity to the northern edge of Grantham. 
Protecting and enhancing the setting, to the extent defined in the adopted Belton House 
and Park Study, is important in maintaining its significance as a heritage asset. During this 
AMR, there were no developments refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy 
GR1. 
 
 

Sustainable Transport in Grantham 
 

Sustainable Transport in Grantham (Policy GR2). 

 

4.59 The growth of Grantham requires an efficient transport network which enables services 
and facilities to be accessible to all, whilst also helping to reduce congestion and minimise 
the environmental impact of transport, particularly through the town centre.  
 

4.60 Contributions to necessary transport improvements and delivery of the objectives of the 
Grantham Transport Strategy will reported in future AMRs, when the data becomes 
available.  
 

 
 

76



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

31 
 

Town Centres 
 

Town Centre Policies (Policy GR4, STM2, BRN2, DEP2) 

 

4.61 South Kesteven has four main market towns: Grantham, Stamford, Bourne, and The 
Deepings. Grantham is the largest town and the second largest settlement in Lincolnshire.  
 

4.62 The Local plan Town Centre policies seek to encourage retail proposals that support the 
roles of the four market towns within the district.  

 
4.63 During this AMR period: 

 

• 121 square metres of net additional gross internal floor space in the four town centres 
was permitted 

 
 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy GR4, 
STM2, BRN2, or DEP2.  
 
 

Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 
 

4.64 Sustainable growth in South Kesteven will need to be supported by the provision of 
appropriate new and upgraded infrastructure in order to ensure the best possible impact 
on the economic and environmental well-being of the district.  
 

4.65 During this AMR period: 
 
 

Infrastructure for Growth (Policy ID1) 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy ID1 and 
supported at appeal.  
 

Transport and Strategic Transport Infrastructure (Policy ID2) 

• One development was refused contrary to Policy ID2, and then supported at appeal. 
  

Broadband and Communications Infrastructure (Policy ID3) 

• No developments were refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy ID3 and 
supported at appeal.  

 

 

Protecting Existing Community Facilities and Providing New Facilities 
 

Community Services and Facilities (Policy SP6) 

 

4.66 The on-going provision of local services and facilities is of critical importance to the 
sustainability of the district’s towns and villages. During this AMR, there were no planning 
applications refused and supported at appeal when citing Policy SP6.   

77



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

32 
 

Other Planning Policies 
 

The Principles of Sustainable Development (Policy SD1) 

  

4.67 Development proposals in South Kesteven are expected to minimise the impact on climate 
change and contribute towards creating a strong, stable and more diverse economy. 
During the AMR monitoring period, there was one planning application refused and 
dismissed at appeal due to non-compliance with policy SD1.  

 

Infill Development (Policy SP3) 

 

4.68 In all settlements defined in Policy SP2, infill development, which is accordance with all 
other relevant Local Planning policies, will be supported where it meets the criterion of 
Policy SP3. This AMR, 7 applications were refused and dismissed at appeal when citing 
policy SP3. One application was refused and supported at appeal, when citing Policy SP3.  

 

Development on the edge of Settlements (Policy SP4) 

 

4.69 Development on the edge of settlements, as defined in Policy SP2, which are in 
accordance with all other relevant Local Planning policies, will be supported where it meets 
the criterion of Policy SP4. One application was dismissed at appeal when citing Policy 
SP4. One application was refused allowed at appeal, when citing Local Plan Policy SP4.  

 

Development in the Open Countryside (Policy SP5) 

 

4.70 Development in the open countryside will be limited to that which has an essential need to 
be located outside of the existing built form of a settlement. Four applications were 
dismissed at appeal when citing Policy SP5. One application was dismissed at appeal 
when citing Policy SP5 and there were no applications allowed when determined at appeal.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78



South Kesteven District Council 
Authority Monitoring Report 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 

33 
 

Section 5: Conclusion 
 

5.1 This is the second AMR since the adoption of the Local Plan (2011-2036). This AMR 
reports the requirements set by the Regulations and the performance against the 
monitoring indicators set out within the Local Plan. The Council will continue to monitor 
performance of the planning policies and decisions to measure its effectiveness which will 
used throughout the review of the Local Plan.  
 

5.2 Future AMRs will be published annually in line with any future national policy and guidance.  
 

79



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Authority Monitoring Report 

 

 

Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation 

Framework 

 

 

 

 

 

2021/22 

80



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

1 
 

The key below shows the status of each target against the indicator monitored in the report and is highlighted in the table below. The table 
below also sets out where the information for each indicator can be found in the report.  

Key (Target) 

Fully met 

Partially met 

Not met 

No target/ data available at 
this time 

 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

SD1: The Principles of 
Sustainable Development 
in South Kesteven 

 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to non-
compliance with Policy SD2 and 
supported at appeal. 

To ensure sustainable development is achieved 32 Paragraph 4.67 

SP1: Spatial Strategy Number and percentage of dwellings 
completed, by location, in 
accordance with Policy SP2: 
Settlement Hierarchy. 

Majority of housing to be delivered in Grantham, 
and then as per the Settlement Hierarchy as 
defined in Policy SP2. 

 

13 Table 6 

SP2: Settlement Hierarchy 

 

See Indicator for policy SP1 See Target for Policy SP1 15-16 Paragraph 4.5-4.6 

SP3: Infill Development 

 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission contrary to 
Policy SP3, and supported at appeal. 

No applications refused planning permission, 
contrary to Policy SP3, to be supported at appeal. 

32 Paragraph 4.68 

81



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

2 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

SP4: Development on the 
Edge of Settlements 

 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission contrary to 
Policy SP4, and supported at appeal. 

No applications refused planning permission, 
contrary to Policy SP4, to be supported at appeal. 

32 Paragraph 4.69 

SP5: Development in the 
Open Countryside 

 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission contrary to 
Policy SP5, and supported at appeal. 

No applications refused planning permission, 
contrary to Policy SP5, to be supported at appeal. 

32 Paragraph 4.70 

H1: Housing Allocations 

 

Total number of dwellings completed 
annually, by location and status 
(allocation or windfall) 

 

Deliver 650 dwellings per annum to meet the 
required need over the plan period 

12 Paragraph 4.1 -4.4 

Table 4 and 5 

Number of lapsed sites per annum 
across all sites (allocations and 
windfall) 

To monitor the number of lapsed sites and removal 
of such sites from housing supply commitments. 

17 Paragraph 4.7 

Number of demolitions per annum 
across all sites (allocations and 
windfall) 

To monitor the number of demolitions and removal 
of such sites from housing supply commitments. 

17 Paragraph 4.8 

Loss of residential to other use 
classes (no. of dwellings) across all 
sites (allocations and windfall) 

No net loss of residential to other uses. 17 Paragraph 4.9 

H2: Affordable Housing 
Contributions 

 

Proportion of housing completions on 
qualifying sites that are affordable.  

30% of total housing completions on all eligible 
sites  

 

20% in urban area of Grantham 

19 Paragraph 4.10-4.11  

Table 9 and 10 

H3: Self and Custom Build 
Housing 

Total number of individuals/ families 
and groups registered on the Self-

At least 2% of self and custom build plots permitted 
on sites with 400 or more units 

21-23 Paragraph 4.18 -4.29 

82



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

3 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

 build and Custom build Housing 
Register. 

Number of specifically stated self-
build plots permitted as part of 
planning application on sites of 400 
or more units. 

H4: Meeting All Housing 
Needs 

 

Number of varying housing types, as 
identified in Policy H4, permitted and 
completed, by location – including 
specialist housing 

Delivery of a suitable range and mix of house types 
which are appropriate to their locations and local 
needs 

24 Paragraph 4.30 -4.31 

Table 16-18 

H5: Gypsies and 
Travellers 

 

Number of approved gypsy and 
traveller pitches from development 
control, planning policy records. 

 

Meet the assessed needs of gypsies and travellers 
according to the SKDC and RC GTAA (2015). 

No unauthorised encampments per annum. 

25 Paragraph 4.32 -4.35 

Table 19 

H6: Travelling 
Showpeople 

 

Number of approved pitches from 
development control and planning 
policy records. 

Meet needs identified in accordance with the SKDC 
and RC GTAA 

25 Paragraph 4.32 -4.35 

Table 19 

SP6:  Community 
Services and Facilities 

 

Number & type of services and 
facilities lost in South Kesteven by 
location. 

No net loss of facilities to ensure community 
facilities are provided to meet local needs 

31 Paragraph 4.66 

83



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

4 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

E1: Grantham Southern 
Gateway Strategy 
Employment Opportunity 

Amount of new employment land 
committed or completed (by use 
class) on the Grantham Southern 
Gateway site in accordance with 
Policy E1. 

 

Amount of other employment 
generating uses committed or 
completed on the Grantham 
Southern Gateway site in accordance 
with Policy E1. 

Development of Strategic Employment Site within 
the plan period. 

26 Table 20 

E2: Strategic Employment 
Sites 

 

Amount of new employment land 
(m2/ha) committed or completed on 
Strategic Employment Sites as 
defined in Policy E2. 

Development of Strategic Employment Sites within 
the plan period. 

26 Table 20 

E3: Employment 
Allocations 

 

Amount of new employment land 
(m2/ha) committed or completed on 
allocated Employment Sites as 
defined in policy E3 

Development of Employment land allocations within 
the plan period. 

26 Table 20 

E4: Protection of Existing 
Employment Sites 

 

Amount of land lost (m2/ha) from 
existing employment sites as defined 
in policy E4. 

No loss of Existing Employment sites as defined in 
policy E4 

27 Paragraph 4.38 

E5: Expansion of Existing 
Businesses 

 

Amount of new employment land 
permitted or completed (m2/ha) 
resulting in the expansion of an 
existing building 

Net expansion of existing businesses, where 
appropriate. 

27 Paragraph 4.38 

84



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

5 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

E6: Loss of Employment 
Land and Buildings to 
Non-Employment Uses 

Amount of employment land and 
buildings lost (m2/ha) to non-
employment uses. 

No loss of Existing Employment sites as defined in 
policy E6 

 

 

 

27 Note: Data in planning 
applications is incomplete to 
determine the exact total amount 
of employment loss. Provided 
number of buildings loss. 

E7: Rural Economy 

 

Amount of rural employment land 
(m2/ha) permitted for the uses 
defined in Policy E7, by location. 

No rural development permitted contrary to Policy 
E7.  

27 Paragraph 4.38 

Number of applications supported at 
appeal when citing this policy within 
reason for refusal 

E8: Other Employment 
Proposals 

 

Amount of employment land (m2/ha) 
permitted for the uses defined in 
Policy E8, by location. 

No employment proposals permitted contrary to 
Policy E8. 

27 Paragraph 4.38 

Number of applications supported at 
appeal when citing this policy within 
reason for refusal 

E9: Visitor Economy 

 

Number of new or improved (or 
committed) visitor economy type 
facilities by location. 

No development proposals permitted contrary to 
Policy E9. 

27 Paragraph 4.38 

Number of applications supported at 
appeal when citing this policy within 
reason for refusal 

EN1: Landscape 
Character 

 

Number of applications supported at 
appeal when citing this policy within 
reason for refusal 

No applications approved contrary to Policy EN1 
and supported at appeal.  To ensure that 
development is appropriate to the character and 

27 Paraph 4.39 - 4.40 

85



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

6 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

significant natural historic and cultural attributes and 
features of the landscape 

EN2: Protecting 
Biodiversity and 
Geodiversity 

 

Change in areas of biodiversity 
importance including: 

 

 Wildlife sites 
 Candidate/potential Local 

Wildlife Sites 
 Protected species record 

 

No net loss of designated wildlife sites or protected 
species. 

28 Paragraph 4.41-4.42 

Number of applications supported at 
appeal when citing this policy within 
reason for refusal 

No applications to be allowed which impact on 
nature consideration interests to ensure 
development minimises the impact of biodiversity 
and wildlife. 

 

28 Paragraph 4.44 

EN3: Green Infrastructure 

 

Number of applications refused 
planning permission contrary to EN3 
and supported at appeal 

No applications approved contrary to Policy or 
supported at appeal. 

28 Paragraph 4.45 

EN4: Pollution Control 

 

Number of applications refused 
planning permission contrary to EN4 
and supported at appeal 

No applications approved which would not on its 
own, or cumulatively lead to unacceptable levels of 
pollution. 

28 Paragraph 4.46 

EN5: Reducing the Risk of 
Flooding 

 

Number of planning permissions 
approved contrary to Environment 
Agency advice on flooding and water 
quality grounds 

No applications to be allowed contrary to 
Environment Agency advice 

28 Paragraph 4.47 

86



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

7 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

EN6: The Historic 
Environment 

 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy EN6 and 
supported at appeal. 

No applications approved contrary to Policy EN6 29 Paragraph 4.48 -4.50 

EN7: Protection and 
Enhancing Grantham 
Canal 

 

Applications permitted or completed 
that are designed to develop the 
canal’s recreational, nature 
conservation, heritage and tourism 
appeal. 

To enhance the Grantham Canal 29 Paragraph 4.51 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy EN7 and 
supported at appeal 

To protect the alignment of the Grantham Canal as 
shown on the Policies Map. 

29 Paragraph 4.51 

DE1: Promoting Good 
Quality Design 

 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy DE1 and 
supported at appeal 

No applications approved contrary to Policy DE1 or 
supported at appeal  

29 Paragraph 4.52 

Percentage of new dwelling son sites 
of 10 dwellings or more being 
developed as ‘Accessible and 
Adaptable’ in line with the optional 
standards set out in Part M4(2) of the 
Building Regulations. 

10% of new dwellings on sites of 10 dwellings or 
more to be developed as ‘Accessible and 
Adaptable’ in line with the optional standards as set 
out in Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations. 

 

Data not available at this time.  

 

SB1:  Sustainable Building 

 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy SB1 and 
supported at appeal 

All development proposals will be expected to 
mitigate against and adapt to climate change  

29 Paragraph 4.53-4.54 

OS1: Open Space 

 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy SB1 and 
supported at appeal.  

No net loss 30 Paragraph 4.55-4.56 

87



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

8 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

RE1: Renewable Energy 
Generation 

 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy RE1 and 
supported at appeal 

No applications approved contrary to Policy or 
allowed at appeal. 

30 Paragraph 4.57 

GR1: Protecting and 
Enhancing the Setting of 
Belton House and Park 

 

Number of applications refused in 
accordance with Policy GR:1 and 
supported at appeal. 

No planning permission granted which impacts 
(negatively) on the setting of Belton House and 
Park 

30 Paragraph 4.58 

GR2: Sustainable 
Transport in Grantham 

 

Contributions to necessary transport 
improvements and the delivery of the 
objectives of the Grantham Transport 
Strategy by appropriate development 
as defined in Policy GR2 either 
directly or indirectly through 
developer contributions 

100% of eligible development to make necessary 
transport improvements and deliver the objectives 
of the Grantham Transport Strategy 

30 Paragraph 4.59-4.60 

GR3-H1: Spitalgate Heath 
– Garden Village 
(Southern Quadrant), 
Grantham  

 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 2000 homes by 2036 18 Table 8 

GR3-H2: Rectory Farm 
(phase 2 North West 
Quadrant), Grantham 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 1150 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

GR3-H3: Land adjacent to 
Rectory Farm (Phase 3 
North West Quadrant), 
Grantham 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 404 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

88



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

9 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

GR3-H4: Land North of 
Longcliffe Road and 
Ryedale Close, 
Manthorpe Road, 
Grantham 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 480 homes by 2036. Indicator not relevant. Site is not a 
housing allocation within the Local Plan. 

GR3-H5: Prince William of 
Gloucester Barracks, 
Grantham 

 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 1775 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

GR4: Grantham Town 
Centre 

 

Total amount of floor space 
completed (m2) by type for uses set 
out in Policy GR4, within the Town 
Centre Boundary as defined on the 
proposals map. 

80% of A1 retail uses to be located within the 
Primary Shopping Frontages 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to non-
compliance with Policy GR4 and 
supported at appeal. 

100% of new retail development to be located 
within the existing town centre. 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

STM1-H1: Stamford 
North, Stamford 

 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 1300 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

STM1-H2: Stamford East, 
Stamford 

 

Number of housing commitments and 
completions each year, against the 
trajectory. 

Deliver a total of 162 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

STM2: Stamford Town 
Centre Policy  

 

Total amount of floor space 
completed m2 by type for uses set 
out in Policy STM2, within the Town 

80% of A1 retail uses to be located within the 
Primary Shopping Frontages 

 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

89



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

10 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

Centre Boundary as defined on the 
proposals map. 

80% of Secondary Shopping Frontage to be 
complementary uses. 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to non-
compliance with Policy STM2 and 
supported at appeal. 

100% of new retail development to be located 
within the existing town centre. 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

BRN1: Bourne Housing 
Need 

 

Bourne Neighbourhood Plan group to 
allocate land sufficient to deliver 100 
new additional homes over the Local 
Plan period within the first five years 
of the Local Plan being adopted. 

To meet Bourne’s Housing Need within the plan 
period. 

18 Table 8 

BRN1-H1: Manning Road, 
Bourne 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year. 

Deliver a total of 107 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

BRN2: Bourne Town 
Centre Policy 

 

Total amount of floor space 
completed (m2) by type for uses set 
out in Policy BRN2  

80% of A1 retail uses to be located within the 
Primary Shopping Frontages 

 

80% of Secondary Shopping Frontage to be 
complementary uses. 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to non-
compliance with Policy BRN2 and 
supported at appeal. 

100% of new retail development to be located 
within the existing town centre. 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

DEP1-H1: Towngate 
West, The Deepings 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 73 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

90



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

11 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

DEP1-H1: Land West of 
Linchfield Road, The 
Deepings 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 100 homes by 2036. Indicator not relevant. Site is not a 
housing allocation within the Local Plan. 

DEP1-H2: Linchfield 
Road, The Deepings 

 

Housing Commitments and 
completions each year. 

Deliver a total of 680 homes by 2036 18 Table 8 

DEP2: Market Deeping 
Town Centre Policy 

 

Total amount of floor space 
completed (m2) by type for uses set 
out in Policy DEP2  

80% of A1 retail uses to be located within the 
Primary Shopping Frontages 

 

80% of Secondary Shopping Frontage to be 
complementary uses. 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to non-
compliance with Policy DEP2 and 
supported at appeal. 

100% of new retail development to be located 
within the existing town centre 

31 Paragraph 4.61-4.63 

LV-H1: Wilsford Lane, 
Ancaster 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 96 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H2: Wilsford Lane, 
Ancaster 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 35 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H3: Low Road, 
Barrowby 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 270 new dwellings by 2036. 18 Table 8 

91



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

12 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

LV-H4: Bourne Road, 
Colsterworth 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 70 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H5: Swinstead 
Road/Bourne Road, Corby 
Glen 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 250 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H6: Easthorpe Road, 
Great Gonerby 

 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 45 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H7: Main Road 
(South), Long Bennington 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 55 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H8: Main Road 
(North), Long Bennington 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 30 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H9: Folkingham Road, 
Morton 

 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 70 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H10: Thistleton Lane 
and Mill Lane, South 
Witham 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 34 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

LV-H11: Land North of 
High Street, South 
Witham 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 31 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

92



Appendix 1: Local Plan Monitoring and Implementation Framework 

13 
 

Policy Indicator Target AMR Page AMR Table/Paragraph 

LV-H12: Part of Elm Farm 
Yard, Thurlby 

Housing commitments and 
completions each year 

Deliver a total of 50 homes by 2036. 18 Table 8 

ID1: Infrastructure for 
Growth 

 

The number of applications subject to 
a viability assessment refused 
planning permission due to 
insufficient infrastructure capacity or 
provision, contrary to Policy ID1, and 
supported at appeal. 

No applications subject to a viability assessment 
that are refused planning permission, contrary to 
Policy ID1, to be supported at appeal. 

31 Paragraph 4.64-4.65 

ID2: Transport and 
Strategic Transport 
Infrastructure 

 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to not 
providing an appropriate 
parking/design statement, or 
transport statement or transport 
assessment and travel plan, in 
accordance with Policy ID2, and 
supported at appeal. 

Every major development  permitted is supported 
by an appropriate Travel Plan/ Transport 
assessment or the like, in accordance with the 
Policy. 

31 Paragraph 4.64-4.65 

ID3: Broadband and 
Communications 
Infrastructure 

 

The number of applications refused 
planning permission due to Policy 
ID3, and supported at appeal. 

100% new development proposals provide FFTP or 
cabling from cabinet to edge of property to enable 
sufficient availability of broadband and 
communications infrastructure 

31 Paragraph 4.64-4.65 

Policy M1: Review of the 
Local Plan 

 

Commence review of Local Plan from 
April 2020 

To commence review of Local Plan from April 2020 6 Table 1 

 

93



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council 

Authority Monitoring Report 

 

 

Appendix 2: Glossary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

94



Appendix 2: Glossary 

1 
 

Annual Monitoring 
Report (AMR) 

The AMR assessed the progress towards the implementation of the 
LDS and the extent to which planning policies are being successfully 
implemented. 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

A Levy allowing Local Authorities to raise funds from owners or 
developers of land undertaking new building projects in their area. Will 
largely replace Section 106 Agreements. 

Core Strategy Superseded DPD. 
Development Plan 
Document (DPD) 

Spatial planning document that is subject to independent public 
examination. Can cover a range of issues and will set out main spatial 
strategy, policies and proposals of the Council. 

Duty to Cooperate A duty on local planning authorities and other bodies to cooperate with 
each other to address strategic issues relevant to their areas.  

Examination All DPDs are subject to examination before a Planning Inspector to 
consider the soundness of the DPD. 

Local Development 
Scheme (LDS) 

Rolling three year project plan for preparation of Local Development 
Documents 

Local Plan (2011-2036) Long term spatial strategy and vision for area including key strategic 
policies and proposals to deliver that vision.   

Localism Act 2011 Contains provisions to reform aspects of the planning system: 
including abolition of Regional Strategies, introduction of duty to 
cooperate and Neighbourhood Planning, changes to way Local Plans 
are prepared, planning enforcement and pre application consultation 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) 

Comprehensive document covering all national planning policy. Issued 
by the Government in March 2012.  

Neighbourhood Planning A plan prepared by a Parish Council or Neighbourhood Forum for a 
particular neighbourhood area. 

Previously Developed 
Land (PDL) 

Land that has been previously developed, or occupied by a permanent 
structure, but excludes agricultural or forestry buildings. Also known as 
Brownfield Land.  

Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) 

Sets out approach to involving community in preparation, alteration 
and review of plan making and in consideration of major planning 
applications.  

Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment (SHMA) 

An objective assessment of the full need for market and affordable 
housing within a housing market area.  

Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) 

Documents that add further detail to the policies in the Local Plan. They 
can be used to provide further guidance for development on specific 
sites, or issues. SPDs are capable of being a material consideration in 
planning decisions but do not form part of the Statutory Development 
Plan.  

Town and Country 
Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 

Regulations setting out the requirements for the operation of the Local 
Planning system.  

 

95



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2022
	Minutes

	4 South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase One Consultation
	Appendix 1 South Lincolnshire Reservoir Phase 1 Consultation - SKDC Response
	Appendix 2 Lincolnshire Reservoir Proposed Site Map
	Appendix 3 Lincolnshire Reservoir Consultation Brochure 2022

	5 Authority Monitoring Report
	Appendix A Authority Monitoring Report 2021-22
	Authority Monitoring Report 2021-22 
	Appendix 1a Monitoring and Implementation Framework (Appendix 1 of AMR) 21.22
	Appendix 1b Glossary (Appendix 2 of Authority Monitoring Report)



